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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: This is a

          3  meeting of the Committee on Women's Issues. Today we

          4  are going to discuss teen pregnancy prevention, and

          5  the services that we offer to parenting teams.

          6                 We have a long list of witnesses, so

          7  I think we are just going to start without an

          8  introduction to make. We are interested in knowing

          9  where we are in our services to parenting teens and

         10  what is the effectiveness of what are the programs,

         11  that is mixed up sentence, what are the programs for

         12  teen pregnancy prevention, and what is their

         13  effectiveness.

         14                 We are joined here today by James

         15  Oddo from Staten Island, Mike Abel from Queens, and

         16  me, I am Ronnie Eldridge. So, I think without much

         17  more, we will just proceed.

         18                 Linda Myer, from the Comptroller's

         19  Office.

         20                 You have to push the button in so the

         21  light goes off.

         22                 MS. MYER: Good afternoon. My name is

         23  Linda Myer, and I am a senior policy analyst in the

         24  Comptroller's Office of Policy Management.

         25                 Thank you, Chairwoman Ronnie Eldridge
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          2  and members of the City Council Committee on Women's

          3  Issues for giving me the opportunity to testify this

          4  afternoon on behalf of Comptroller Alan Hevesi,

          5  concerning the serious issue of adolescent pregnancy

          6  in New York City.

          7                 Every year thousands of New York City

          8  adolescent women become pregnant, the vast majority

          9  unintentionally. This phenomena must be addressed

         10  because of the potentially disastrous consequences

         11  for teen parents and their children.

         12                 The most recent statistics indicate

         13  that there are nearly 12,000 babies born in New York

         14  City every year to teenage mothers.

         15                 This number is large enough to fill

         16  500 kindergarten classrooms. Children born to

         17  teenage parents are more likely to be poor, become

         18  teenage parents themselves, and enter the juvenile

         19  justice and foster care system.

         20                 You will also hear today from teens

         21  about the real life difficulties that teenage

         22  parents face. While New York City has seen a slight

         23  decrease in the number of teenage pregnancies, much

         24  more attention, effort and resources need to be

         25  concentrated around teenage pregnancy prevention.
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          2                 The New York Citywide Task Force on

          3  Adolescent Pregnancy, parenting and prevention,

          4  chaired by Comptroller Alan Hevesi, has been

          5  focusing on many issues with teenage pregnancy.

          6                 Four years ago the task force, in

          7  conjunction with City Council Members Eldridge,

          8  Watkins and DiBrienza, published a report entitled

          9  Teenage Childbearing in New York City: The Crisis

         10  Continues. It highlighted some of the parenting

         11  education and childcare obstacles adolescent parents

         12  face.

         13                 Since that report, the Task Force has

         14  continued to advocate for services for pregnant,

         15  parenting and at-risk adolescents. At the task

         16  force's urging, the Board of Education opened 11 new

         17  LYFE Programs, LYFE, or Living for the Young Family

         18  through Education, provides quality child care in

         19  public schools for the infant and toddlers of the

         20  teen parents who attend them.

         21                 The expansion of LYFE program is an

         22  important achievement. Still a host of challenges

         23  remain that must be addressed. I will focus on four

         24  issues today: Prevention, education, child care and

         25  health.
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          2                 First, it is obvious that preventing

          3  adolescent pregnancy in the first place obviate the

          4  need to address some of the other problems

          5  associated with teenage pregnancy.

          6                 Prevention efforts need to be

          7  comprehensive, involving community organizations,

          8  schools, families and health care organizations, and

          9  must focus on areas that have been virtually

         10  neglected.

         11                 Successful teenage prevention

         12  intervention also should include collaboration with

         13  the Board of Education. Although, the Board of

         14  Education is mandated to offer sex ed instruction to

         15  students in all grades. It is not equipped to do so

         16  effectively.

         17                 Its curriculum, family living,

         18  including sex education is outdated. The most recent

         19  addition of the curriculum was published 11 years

         20  ago.

         21                 Additionally, many of the public

         22  schools teaching staff may not be trained or

         23  equipped to teach the curriculum.

         24                 Although we have no hard data yet,

         25  task force members have reported that the Board's
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          2  Family Living Including Sex Education curriculum is

          3  selectively implemented: It is not taught in every

          4  school, it is not taught in every mandated grade,

          5  and it is not taught to all students in each grade.

          6  We need to review the curriculum and determine how

          7  to better implement it.

          8                 In addition, teenage pregnancy

          9  prevention efforts usually target females. We also

         10  need to establish programs to address male

         11  involvement in teenage pregnancy prevention. Male

         12  prevention programs should be geared toward ten to

         13  14-year-old males, as well as males between the ages

         14  of 15 and 21. They must be culturally sensitive and

         15  emphasize alternatives to teen parenthood. For

         16  example, staying in school, doing better in school

         17  and setting personal goals.

         18                 They also should refer males to

         19  educational and training programs, help build

         20  self-awareness, self esteem and leadership skills,

         21  teach effective communication and conflict

         22  resolution skills, and offer information about male

         23  development, both physical and psychological.

         24                 Of course, they must also include

         25  counseling on abstinence and contraception.
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          2                 The Comptroller's Task Force on

          3  Adolescent Pregnancy Parenting and Prevention

          4  currently is examining existing male prevention

          5  programs and evaluating their effectiveness.

          6                 Task Force members report that men

          7  over 21 years of age, and some much older than that,

          8  father a significant number of children born to

          9  teenage mothers who are under 18 years old.

         10                 While the Task Force recognizes the

         11  ethical and professional dilemma this occurrence may

         12  create for service providers, clearly, it

         13  constitutes criminal behavior by those adult males

         14  and must be addressed from a criminal perspective.

         15                 Second, schools are one of the most

         16  important avenues for ensuring that teens and their

         17  children avoid or break out of a cycle of poverty.

         18  Disturbingly, more than 25 percent of female

         19  drop-outs and eight percent of male dropouts

         20  identify early parenthood as their reason for

         21  leaving school.

         22                 The Board of Education should convene

         23  a task force to identify teen parents who have left

         24  school and facilitate their return to appropriate

         25  educational settings.
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          2                 The Task Force should include

          3  representatives from TASA and Babygram, as well as

          4  other organizations that work to advance educational

          5  success among teenage parents.

          6                 Babygram, a joint program of the

          7  Board of Education and the Health and Hospitals

          8  Corporation, provides educational and social

          9  services to pregnant and parenting teens.

         10                 TASA, a comprehensive social service

         11  agency, that was created under the federally

         12  legislative Teen Aid Services Act, targets at-risk

         13  pregnant and parenting adolescents on Medicaid.

         14                 These programs and others like them

         15  should be evaluated and if proven successful

         16  expanded.

         17                 For example, Babygram could be

         18  expanded to all of the public and voluntary

         19  hospitals that serve large numbers of pregnant and

         20  parenting adolescents. A major goal of TASA is to

         21  help its client achieve educational goals. Due to

         22  limited resources, however, TASA is able to serve

         23  only approximately 1,000 clients per year. When

         24  teenage parents are ready to return to school, we

         25  must ensure that appropriate educational placement
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          2  and resources are available.

          3                 For example, we know that New York

          4  State's Regents exams have been made more

          5  comprehensive and that passing them will be more

          6  difficult than in the past.

          7                 While the Comptroller supports higher

          8  academic standards, resources must be made available

          9  for helping students meet them.

         10                 The Board of Education, however, has

         11  no formal plans or resources for helping students,

         12  particularly students at risk meet these higher

         13  standards.

         14                 At-risk students include, among

         15  others, students who previously have not performed

         16  well on standardized tests; students with reading

         17  and math deficits; new immigrants; students who have

         18  lost time from school; and teenage parents, who may

         19  also fall into one of the other categories.

         20                 Students who do not pass the Regents

         21  exam by age 21 will not be able to get a high school

         22  diploma. This increases the risk of student dropout.

         23                 Therefore, without providing

         24  supportive services for students, and under the best

         25  of circumstances, many students will need some form

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  of assistance to pass the new Regents and meet the

          3  new academic performance standards.

          4                 Our efforts to raise students

          5  academic achievement will be hindered.

          6                 Task force members have also heard

          7  that many adolescent parents are being counseled out

          8  of the schools they formerly attended. They are

          9  being encouraged to enroll in GED programs instead

         10  of attend high school.

         11                 The reality is, recent higher GED

         12  standards make mastery of high school academic

         13  material through a GED program almost impossible,

         14  especially for adolescents with parenting

         15  responsibilities.

         16                 Accordingly, steering parents into

         17  GED programs makes it much more likely that they

         18  will never graduate from high school.

         19                 Third, since adolescence entitlements

         20  are affected by lack of participation in approved

         21  educational program or in the job market, child care

         22  is not merely desirable, it is essential.

         23                 Without child care, teen parents are

         24  unable to return to school. Accordingly, the Task

         25  Force advocates that ACD grant priority status for
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          2  ACD child care slots to adolescent parents; provide

          3  vouchers any teen parent needing ACD child care to

          4  return to school and allow teenagers to apply for

          5  child care and establish presumptive eligibility for

          6  child care before the date that they are due to

          7  return to school.

          8                 Currently, ACD does not accept a

          9  teenager's child care application until after the

         10  teenager has given birth and is enrolled and

         11  attending school for at least 30 hours a week.

         12                 By establishing their presumptive

         13  eligibility, adolescents can be placed on child care

         14  waiting lists, with actual enrollment set for 12

         15  weeks after their expected due date.

         16                 A final eligibility determination

         17  would be made once they have given birth. This will

         18  make it easier for them to return to school.

         19                 ACD also should provide funding for

         20  those LYFE children now being served at the Board of

         21  Education's expense. Those include children of

         22  teenage parents in foster care, children of teenage

         23  parents on SSI or HR/Safety Net, and children who

         24  turn three during the school year.

         25                 The latter reimbursements should be
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          2  made at the preschool rate. ACD must work to

          3  maintain the continuity of child care for teen

          4  parents.

          5                 When a LYFE parent's child ages out

          6  of the LYFE program, or moves to a school that has

          7  no LYFE program, that parent should be given

          8  priority for openings in community based ACD child

          9  care programs.

         10                 In collaboration with ACD, the Board

         11  of Education should permit toddlers to remain in the

         12  LYFE program until parents graduate or leave their

         13  school, and it should develop a child care referral

         14  system to assist adolescent parents in finding child

         15  care programs that meet the unique needs of

         16  adolescent parents and their children.

         17                 The Task Force also recommends that

         18  the Board of Education renew the existing commitment

         19  that new or renovated schools include a LYFE Program

         20  and expand a LYFE Program to all high schools with a

         21  significant parent population.

         22                 Lastly, the panoply of problems

         23  adolescent parents face is not limited to child care

         24  and education. According to a recent national study

         25  by the Institute for Health and Policy Studies, and
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          2  the Department of Pediatrics, University of

          3  California, an estimated 14 percent of adolescents

          4  have no health care insurance and are four times

          5  more likely to have unmet medical needs, as compared

          6  to their insured counterparts.

          7                 We should focus more attention in

          8  this area.

          9                 In the first instance, we should

         10  evaluate the issues and obstacles related to

         11  adolescents' ability to access health care for

         12  themselves and their children.

         13                 Secondly, we should establish

         14  additional comprehensive school-based health care

         15  clinics at high schools where the need for such

         16  services has been determined based upon graphic data

         17  collected by the Board of Education and the

         18  Department of Health.

         19                 Finally, we should increase the

         20  availability and delivery of mental health services

         21  to adolescents and evaluate whether these services

         22  are effective in reaching those deemed to be at high

         23  risk.

         24                 The Comptroller's Office and the Task

         25  Force are continuing to focus attention on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  addressing these and other important issues related

          3  to teenage pregnancy.

          4                 We are available to work with this

          5  Committee, the Board of Education and ACD to

          6  cooperatively develop meaningful solutions to these

          7  problems.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         10                 How often does the task force meet?

         11                 MS. MYERS: The Task Force, the full

         12  Task Force meets quarterly. In fact, our next

         13  quarterly Task Force meeting is going to be this

         14  Wednesday, September 29th.

         15                 The Subcommittee of the Task Force,

         16  Prevention, Child Care and Education and Health,

         17  meet monthly on different schedules.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then how

         19  effective? I mean, I am very appreciative of the

         20  breath of the program and the number of things that

         21  you are involved, but what happens the next step? Is

         22  it the Comptroller, and then you testify at a City

         23  Council hearing that we all have to move it along,

         24  how do we affect the actual agency's performance in

         25  all of this?
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          2                 MS. MYERS: Well, the task force and

          3  the Subcommittee specifically are working actually

          4  to engage the ACD, as well as the Board of Ed, in

          5  actually accomplishing the goals that are set out in

          6  the testimony.

          7                 We have met with Maria Vandor, from

          8  ACD, to begin to look at some of the issues that

          9  relate to teenage parents and their need for child

         10  care. We have had contact from people with the Board

         11  of Ed to look at their curriculum, to determine how

         12  it is being implemented and we want to continue to

         13  do that. In fact, we want to actually survey the

         14  schools to see what is happening with the curriculum

         15  and how we can better implement it. We are not sure

         16  whether or not -- where it is working and where the

         17  gaps are, but the Subcommittees are actually taking

         18  a lead role in doing in doing some of those things.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Does the Board

         20  of Ed have a Committee -- I mean, do you work

         21  closely with the curriculum committee at the Board

         22  of Ed? Is there such a thing?

         23                 MS. MYERS: I don't know actually

         24  whether there is such a thing, I would love to find

         25  out.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We will ask

          3  later, some other people.

          4                 MS. MYERS: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How many teens

          6  are we talking about? Teen parents with children? Do

          7  you know?

          8                 MS. MYERS: Do you mean teen parents

          9  that are in a particular program?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Teen parents.

         11                 MS. MYERS: In New York City?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What is the

         13  general universe? Can you give us a number of how

         14  many parenting teens we have these days?

         15                 MS. MYERS: We have about 12,000.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: 12,000, and

         17  that is constant, a pretty constant number?

         18                 MS. MYERS: Yes, it is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how many of

         20  them are in the Board of Ed Program, do you know?

         21                 MS. MYERS: I am not sure exactly how

         22  many are in the life program. That information I can

         23  get to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes, somebody

         25  else will have it I think.
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          2                 Does anybody have any questions?

          3                 We have been joined by Margarita

          4  Lopez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you know if

          6  these programs, any of the programs that you

          7  mentioned here, helped the parents to acquire

          8  Medicaid?

          9                 MS. MYERS: Definitely. I know that --

         10  well, TASA is a program that only works with teen

         11  parents that are receiving Medicaid.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Only?

         13                 MS. MYERS: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In other words,

         15  the teen had to get there with the Medicaid place?

         16                 MS. MYERS: There are programs,

         17  Babygram is a comprehensive program that provides a

         18  wide range of services in addition to educational

         19  services, so they would help in that respect as

         20  well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if the

         22  teen doesn't have Medicaid at the time they try to

         23  get into the program TASA, that will be a lack of

         24  qualification?

         25                 MS. MYERS: That would be, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Is there any

          3  knowledge that you have in the case that that team

          4  is in that situation, that somebody would help them

          5  to get Medicaid in order to qualify for the program?

          6                 MS. MYERS: From what I understand,

          7  there is actually a new initiative that I am waiting

          8  to hear something about very shortly, a program to

          9  help teens enroll, adolescents enroll in Medicaid

         10  and Child Help Plus and in other types of, get other

         11  types of health care for them.

         12                 I know that the Children's Aid

         13  Society, Kate Lawlor from the Children's Aid Society

         14  is working as part of that team and working in that

         15  program to help teens access medical services.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         18                 I think this has been a very good

         19  broad outlook and we are going to now call on

         20  witnesses to be able to testify in specific areas.

         21                 Unfortunately the person testifying

         22  for TASA was unable to come, was called to another

         23  meeting today, so we will have to do that at another

         24  time or do something.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 MS. MYERS: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The next

          4  witnesses are Pauline DeMairo, Donna Zaengle, and

          5  Samantha Stanley and Miriam Spiro, so if you will

          6  all come up and sit down. I think we need another

          7  chair. Thank you.

          8                 Pauline, maybe you would start?

          9                 MS. DeMAIRO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Tell us how

         11  different it is than it was when I first heard you

         12  testify ten years ago.

         13                 MS. DeMAIRO: Well, in truth?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         15                 MS. DeMAIRO: Absolutely the truth,

         16  you know that. It is really not much different. I

         17  mean, as you heard, it is still a problem for New

         18  York City. This is away from the text you were given

         19  by the way, I am just responding to Ronnie's

         20  question.

         21                 Although there have been national

         22  declines, New York City cannot merely make that

         23  claim. It is just a shade of difference in the

         24  stats. We still run very high with our adolescent

         25  pregnancies, and half the pregnancies result in
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          2  abortions, less than half -- a little less than half

          3  are now holding onto the children, and then of

          4  course there are the miscarriages that we have, so

          5  that accounts for it. But we are really still

          6  running, there are about 1,000 less than we were

          7  with the last stats, which really isn't much to say

          8  truthfully.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Around 22,000?

         10                 MS. DeMAIRO: No, not at all. We are

         11  up around 31,000.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That is

         13  different I think because --

         14                 MS. DeMAIRO: We were 33, 34 at the

         15  time. I mean, when you compare us to the rest of the

         16  country, we are lagging. We are lagging.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         18  share that, because something came across my desk I

         19  don't have here, and it talks about educators share

         20  credits for drop in teen sex. You know, there is a

         21  drop in teen sex, what they are talking about is

         22  that the research is concluded -- with all things

         23  concluded, with all things even, you know how

         24  researchers do it, but that with all things even

         25  that the researchers conclude that less permissive
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          2  sexual attitudes and increased AIDS education were

          3  the factors most closely associated with the decline

          4  of sexual activity.

          5                 I think that is very interesting

          6  stats for us to look at, because what they are

          7  talking about is that the pressure came in on both

          8  sides, you know, you are going to die, or what they

          9  are talking about is that, well, here are some -- we

         10  are telling you there are other things you can do,

         11  there are other things that are being offered to you

         12  and how about delaying the sexual activity. But let

         13  me get to my text.

         14                 Good afternoon, Council Members and

         15  concerned individuals. Thank you for this

         16  opportunity to address the issue of Teen Pregnancy

         17  Prevention at the Women's Issues Committee at the

         18  New York City Council.

         19                 I am Pauline DeMairo, the Director of

         20  the Teen Outreach Pregnancy Prevention Program,

         21  better known as TOPP here in the City. It is a New

         22  York City Board of Education Program under the

         23  umbrella of the program for pregnant and parenting

         24  teens.

         25                 I thought I would take a different
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          2  approach today, and instead of adults talking to

          3  you, what I did was I excerpted some advice that

          4  teens had for adults from a pamphlet Talking Back:

          5  Ten Things Teens Want Parents To Know About Teen

          6  Pregnancy, which was published by the National

          7  Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy, an organization

          8  about three-years-old at this point.

          9                 Their statements are responses to the

         10  question, how can we help teens avoid teen

         11  pregnancy?

         12                 So the first one is: talk to us

         13  honestly about love, sex, relationships. Just

         14  because we are young doesn't mean that we can't fall

         15  in love or be deeply interested in sex. These

         16  feelings are very real and powerful to us, help us

         17  to handle the feeling in a safe way without getting

         18  hurt or hurting others.

         19                 Number two, telling us not to have

         20  sex is not enough. Explain why you feel that way,

         21  ask us what we think, tell us how you felt as a

         22  teen, listen to us and take our opinions seriously,

         23  and no lectures, please.

         24                 Number three: Whether we are having

         25  sex or not, we need to be prepared. We need to know
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          2  how to avoid pregnancy and sexually transmitted

          3  diseases.

          4                 Number four, if we ask you about sex

          5  or birth control, don't assume that we are already

          6  having sex. We may just be curious or we might just

          7  want to talk with someone we trust. And don't think

          8  giving us information about sex and birth control

          9  will encourage us to have sex.

         10                 Number five, pay attention to us

         11  before we get into trouble. Programs for teen moms

         12  and teen fathers are great, but we all need

         13  encouragement, attention and support. Reward us for

         14  doing the right thing, even when it seems like no

         15  big thing. Don't shower us with attention only when

         16  there is a baby involved.

         17                 Number six, sometimes all it takes

         18  not to have sex is not to have the opportunity. If

         19  you can't be home with us after school, make sure we

         20  have something to do that we really like, where

         21  there are other kids and some adults that are

         22  comfortable with kids our age.

         23                 Often we have sex because there is

         24  not much else to do. Don't leave us alone so much.

         25                 Number seven. We really care what you
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          2  think, even if we don't always act like it. When we

          3  don't end up doing exactly what you tell us to,

          4  don't think that you failed to reach us.

          5                 Number eight: Show us what good,

          6  responsible relationships look like. We are

          7  influenced by what you do, and we are as influenced

          8  by what you do as what you say.

          9                 If you demonstrate sharing,

         10  communication and responsibility in your own

         11  relationships, we will be more likely to follow your

         12  example.

         13                 Number nine: We hate the talk as much

         14  as you do. Instead, start talking to us about

         15  respect and responsibility when we are young, and

         16  keep the conversation going as we grow older.

         17                 With this advice in mind, I would

         18  like to make the following recommendations:

         19                 Joy Dryfoos, nationally acknowledged

         20  and respected researcher, writer, and lecturer in

         21  the field of teen pregnancy, has discussed the

         22  effectiveness of using social influence models and

         23  social skills training and sexuality and family life

         24  education.

         25                 In addition, she believes that teen
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          2  pregnancy should be addressed with a rational,

          3  programmatic response. Within that framework

          4  initially we must recognize a comprehensive

          5  multi-component family, school, community

          6  interventions for which there are models, by the

          7  way, all over the country, as a necessity.

          8                 Adolescents need access to health and

          9  social services, skills building and enrichment,

         10  avenues out of cultural isolation, family planning

         11  and life options education, interpersonal recreation

         12  and communication enrichment programs, caring adults

         13  and role models, and education suitable to the needs

         14  of the future, that is a tall order for us, that one

         15  which I think we can meet.

         16                 Although there is much to be done,

         17  some introductory school-based initiatives to

         18  consider are:

         19                 To require health class to be taught

         20  in the ninth year, not in the 11th year.

         21                 To provide primary pregnancy

         22  prevention training for one guidance

         23  counselor/teacher -- should have been slash social

         24  worker -- per high school or program, who will

         25  establish school initiatives, trainings, workshops,
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          2  et cetera, in each school, establishing what we call

          3  an education turn-key training.

          4                 Allocate funds for each high school

          5  program to provide that same counselor or teacher

          6  with one period a day, strictly to facilitate groups

          7  with ninth year students, which focus on primary

          8  pregnancy prevention.

          9                 Allocate sufficient funds to

         10  establish health resource centers and rooms in each

         11  high school program or to expand the existing ones.

         12                 There should be an expansion of

         13  parent workshops in adolescent development and

         14  sexuality.

         15                 TOPP After School Health Resource

         16  Centers in each high school or program, if possible.

         17                 The coordination of these centers

         18  with any other health initiatives in the schools.

         19                 The development of a guidance-based

         20  life-planning course for the ninth and 11th years,

         21  which would encompass not only parenting skills, but

         22  a wider range of life skills which would counter the

         23  contributing factors listed earlier.

         24                 The establishment of a summer

         25  institute which would focus on issues that youth in
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          2  high risk environments experience, and on at-risk

          3  behaviors in which youth partake.

          4                 Primary pregnancy prevention

          5  school-based campaigns which involve the community.

          6                 Some of the successes in California,

          7  Wisconsin, Maryland and New Mexico, are due to

          8  statewide and Citywide campaigns within the state

          9  that are out there offering other alternatives to

         10  teen parenting.

         11                 By helping youth develop themselves,

         12  they will have significantly stronger incentives to

         13  remain abstinent and delay pregnancies and

         14  childbearing until they are ready and able to assume

         15  the roles of parents.

         16                 Drop-out rates and long-term absences

         17  would decrease and attendance figures would increase

         18  in our schools.

         19                 Whether children give birth, lose a

         20  baby in spontaneous termination, or at birth, or

         21  choose an abortion, a traumatic event has taken

         22  place for both the involved adolescent female and

         23  male.

         24                 The tragedy is that this is an event

         25  whose frequency can be diminished, if we as adults
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          2  were confronted as a serious health issue and

          3  designated a priority in this City.

          4                 TOPP publishes a journal every year

          5  and I give it out and you will find it in your

          6  mailboxes in and around the beginning of November. I

          7  hope you will take a minute to look at the TOPP

          8  journal, it describes our activities in all of the

          9  schools we are involved in, and does what we do with

         10  our young people to prevent teen pregnancy.

         11                 I thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you tell us

         13  what your actual role is? Are you in the schools?

         14                 MS. DeMAIRO: Oh, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: You are funded

         16  by the Board of Ed?

         17                 MS. DeMAIRO: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how many

         19  people are there working with you?

         20                 MS. DeMAIRO: I have one school aid

         21  and two family paras, we call them family paras,

         22  working with me.

         23                 What I do is do staff training of

         24  teachers, social workers or guidance counselors in

         25  18 high schools around the City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And how many

          3  high schools are there?

          4                 MS. DeMAIRO: Almost 200 at this

          5  point. And we are involved with some community-based

          6  organizations that do work in high schools and in

          7  junior high schools but there are very few at this

          8  point.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But that is an

         10  improvement from ten years ago because it seems to

         11  me you were the only person and you had a desk,

         12  right?

         13                 MS. DeMAIRO: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It would come

         15  to one and a half people.

         16                 MS. DeMAIRO: That's true.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It sort of

         18  leaves me speechless, Pauline.

         19                 Do you have a question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We have been

         22  joined by Christine Quinn also.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Who determines

         24  to what school you go?

         25                 MS. DeMAIRO: Good question.
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          2                 This started awhile ago, Margarita.

          3  This started about, now it is almost eight years

          4  that we have those schools, you know we put these

          5  top programs in, and it started with boroughwide

          6  conferences. And what we did was have this

          7  boroughwide conference called PEP is Fresh,

          8  Preventing Early Pregnancies is Fresh, and we

          9  invited all of the high schools to participate, and

         10  at the end of the conference, and we had the Borough

         11  President speak at each of those boroughs, we had

         12  the superintendent of the high schools speak at each

         13  of those boroughs to show that there was trying to

         14  be a melding of the community with, you know, the

         15  schools.

         16                 Anyway, at the end of that we gave

         17  them a sheet and said if you are interested in

         18  having an after school program, please fill this

         19  out, et cetera, who is the contact.

         20                 Now, what was interesting about it

         21  was that certain superintendencies followed up on

         22  it, others did not. So we never able to have one in

         23  BASIS, which is Brooklyn and Staten Island. We did

         24  have it in our Brooklyn superintendent's office. So,

         25  presently our schools are in, our centers are in
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          2  Bronx high schools, Queens high schools, and what we

          3  call the Brooklyn high schools, not BASIS.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you know if

          5  it is a correlation between the places that you go

          6  and the level of teen pregnancy?

          7                 MS. DeMAIRO: We try to encourage, let

          8  me phrase it that way, we try to encourage the

          9  superintendent to place us, and they really have, I

         10  mean we have some schools that have very high rate

         11  of teen pregnancy in their areas, that would be the

         12  point of it.

         13                 There are some hidden pregnancies, by

         14  the way. What we call hidden. The middle class,

         15  schools that are in middle class area is what I

         16  wanted to say, not necessarily part of the stats

         17  that we received, and more hidden stats, and it is

         18  not we don't get true stats, so some of those

         19  schools, although they appear not to need that

         20  assistance, do need that assistance, but heavily are

         21  schools, in the journal you will see which schools

         22  they are, they are really in schools where the stats

         23  are telling us there is a need.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Let me clarify

         25  the purposes of my question.
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          2                 MS. DeMAIRO: No problem.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just need to

          4  understand, is anyone out there in the Board of

          5  Education, the Department of Health, who is looking

          6  at the fact that let's say in district 2, as an

          7  example only, which is my district in Manhattan, the

          8  level of teen pregnancy is higher than in 3,

          9  Councilmanic District 3.

         10                 MS. DeMAIRO: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Is anyone out

         12  there that deals with this problem, that when they

         13  see this will immediately trigger a request for you

         14  to come into those areas?

         15                 MS. DeMAIRO: Okay, TOPP is not

         16  allowed to go into a community school district

         17  without the permission of the superintendent. It is

         18  a high school program. You will notice Margarita

         19  that I said I wanted it in the ninth grade. I push

         20  it always for my people to be dealing with ninth

         21  graders. Truthfully, the program should be in junior

         22  high schools.

         23                 It should be all with the younger

         24  ones, but what is happening is we hit a far harder

         25  and controversial political arena with that. But as
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          2  I said, if a school wanted to -- heard about TOPP,

          3  let's say through whatever source, and they wanted

          4  TOPP to come in there and work with them, I would

          5  have to say to them do you have your

          6  superintendent's permission to bring me into this

          7  school.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          9                 MS. DeMAIRO: You are welcome. I would

         10  gladly work in your district, Margarita.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: When a new

         12  superintendent is hired or whatever, do they receive

         13  an orientation about TOPPs? Are you in like the new

         14  superintendent packet of stuff they get? The same

         15  thing with new principals too, because the borough

         16  thing you talked about sounded great, except --

         17                 MS. DeMAIRO: It only happened once.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Exactly.

         19                 So, it seems like by no fault of your

         20  own we end up a little bit in like through the

         21  grapevine word of mouth type thing, at least what it

         22  sounded like to me. So I wanted to know if there was

         23  any, you know, structure within orientation of new

         24  principals or assistant principals or health

         25  teachers or superintendents or all, that would make
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          2  sure people knew about you.

          3                 MS. DeMAIRO: There is no such piece

          4  in place for new principals.

          5                 What I do is two things: The journal

          6  acts as my PR piece, it goes out to, I put two in

          7  all the mailboxes, I travel to all of the boroughs

          8  to save postage and I put them in all of the

          9  mailboxes in all of the high schools, and they all

         10  get two copies each, because my budget restricts me

         11  as well, and one is to the principal, and one then

         12  usually gets shipped over to the AP, excuse me,

         13  Assistant Principal, Pupil Personnel Services. That

         14  is one way I publicize what we do.

         15                 The second way is that I ask the

         16  supervisors of guidance, in each of the high school

         17  superintendencies, if I may present to their

         18  assistant principals guidance and talk to them about

         19  the TOPP Program. That's it though.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That's okay,

         21  but I guess what I was thinking is --

         22                 MS. DeMAIRO: You mean from the other

         23  structures? No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And it seems to

         25  me that if people got -- given the topic that you
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          2  are covering, some people might be nervous about

          3  reaching out to you, obviously, so if there was

          4  something that people got formally from the Board of

          5  Ed, do you know what I mean --

          6                 MS. DeMAIRO: I do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: -- It would be

          8  very affirming and calming.

          9                 MS. DeMAIRO: It doesn't happen,

         10  Council Member, it doesn't happen.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 MS. DeMAIRO: Thank you. I wish it

         13  did.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Is your

         15  organization to the point, or would you have the

         16  resources to train teachers of the schools, and

         17  would that be a better use of the limited resources

         18  that you have? In order to hit more and more

         19  schools, at least as a beginning.

         20                 MS. DeMAIRO: Okay. With the resources

         21  that we presently have, I do not work one on one

         22  with students. I used to do that when I first took

         23  over the program ten years ago, and I realize that

         24  was not using my resources best. So, what I then did

         25  was establish the staff trainings, which I have a
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          2  background in and can do. So what I did was staff

          3  training, which of course then is able to, teaching

          4  them how to fish, so now I have a person in place.

          5  No matter where that person might go, even if they

          6  are transferred to another school, they have been

          7  well trained in pregnancy prevention initiatives,

          8  and I can just pick up and work with them wherever

          9  they are going, and then retrain a new person there.

         10                 They in turn, of course, reach as

         11  many of the students as they can in their schools,

         12  through the young people that they work with on a

         13  regular basis every week, and that is how we used

         14  the resources.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ABEL: I guess what I am

         16  really asking is reaching the teachers.

         17                 MS. DeMAIRO: All right. Within the

         18  school itself, I am sometimes --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: If they go to

         20  another school, are they willing -- does it happen

         21  that they spread the word?

         22                 MS. DeMAIRO: That is a special

         23  request.

         24                 For instance, I already have a

         25  request from the Bronx Superintendent's Office to do
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          2  two trainings for staff from all of the schools, all

          3  of the high schools in the Bronx two times this

          4  year, one in May which is pregnancy prevention month

          5  nationally, and he also liked what we did last year

          6  so he has asked me to do one in the fall, and so I

          7  have to plan two trainings.

          8                 So, I do do trainings for staffs in

          9  schools, yes. As well as I train those 18 schools

         10  under my umbrella, the people within, you know,

         11  those 18 people, and then they hopefully go back to

         12  their school and do what they are supposed to be

         13  doing. Does that answer it?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: It is probably

         15  the best I am going to get.

         16                 MS. DeMAIRO: Okay, I am sorry. Maybe

         17  the journal will explain it better to you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay.

         19                 MS. DeMAIRO: And feel free to call

         20  me. It is all the information on the sheets.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I didn't

         22  understand. You travel rather than pay the postage?

         23                 MS. DeMAIRO: Yes. Because the

         24  postage, it is very expensive with the journal. And

         25  what happens is, it takes you what? If I add it up,
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          2  it is like two days, not even. And you just move

          3  around fast. I use the car. I watch what I do with

          4  the money, you know.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That's really

          6  unbelievable, especially when we have got all of

          7  these commissioners driving around with drivers.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Ronnie, it

          9  would just be interesting to see if there are any

         10  other City programs where the people drive around

         11  their own mail.

         12                 MS. DeMAIRO: Well, you know, we do it

         13  once a year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is your

         15  opinion about the curriculum in the schools?

         16                 MS. DeMAIRO: I think it is time for

         17  us to look at it again. I always feel that it is

         18  opportune for us to see what the rest of the country

         19  is doing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         21  much, Pauline.

         22                 MS. DeMAIRO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I think Donna

         24  Zaergle and Samantha Stanley will be next.

         25                 MS. ZAERGLE: Thank you. Both Samantha
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          2  and I are really honored to be here today. We both

          3  work at an agency called The Door. For the past 13

          4  years I have been a social worker and a supervisor

          5  of the Perinatal Program at The Door where we work

          6  with pregnant teens throughout their pregnancy and

          7  through the baby's second year. This design allows

          8  for continuity of care during a time of essential

          9  growth and change for both the adolescent and her

         10  child.

         11                 The program works very intensely with

         12  a very small number of adolescents, approximately 75

         13  different pregnant teens annually.

         14                 They attend our program weekly for

         15  individual counseling, a psychoeducational group,

         16  whose goal we say is to teach everything you ever

         17  wanted or needed to know about being pregnant,

         18  giving birth and early parenting.

         19                 They have medical care nutrition

         20  counseling and deliver their babies at St. Vincent's

         21  Hospital. Our model is very costly and labor

         22  intensive and very underfunded. There seems to be

         23  money to develop programs to prevent pregnancy, but

         24  little to actually work with those who have chosen

         25  to parent.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 When I was first asked to speak to

          3  the members of City Council, I thought it would be

          4  simple. I thought I could tell you about the

          5  research that we have compiled on the adolescents

          6  who use our services and that I would recount some

          7  of their stories. But as I sat down to write it, it

          8  became much more difficult. Whose story should I

          9  tell? And how can I best convey to you who these

         10  young families are and what they need. If you could

         11  know and understand them as individuals from a

         12  holistic point, take into account their unique

         13  histories, their goals, their desires, then you

         14  could be guided in how to set policies which support

         15  them as people, not as statistics or theories.

         16                 I have met an amazing array of young

         17  people who have gotten pregnant and decided to

         18  parent. I have heard some of the saddest stories of

         19  abuse, neglect and abandonment by their families.

         20                 I have heard teens describe such

         21  overwhelming feelings of hopelessness and

         22  worthlessness that I do not know how they get up

         23  everyday. I have seen cycles of abuse, both physical

         24  and emotional, repeated at the hands of boyfriends.

         25                 On the other hand, I have seen teens
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          2  who live in loving, supportive families, who choose

          3  to carry their unplanned pregnancies from.

          4                 The teens I have worked with are in

          5  school, they have graduated, they have dropped out

          6  years ago, they have dropped out recently. They work

          7  unemployed. The list goes on. Their histories are

          8  unique and play a role in their decision to parent,

          9  but more importantly, their history tells us what

         10  they need to parent successfully.

         11                 When most of us thing about babies we

         12  think of images of love and warmth. Babies represent

         13  hope and an investment in the future. The teens I

         14  work with start out with a positive feeling about

         15  pregnancy and parenthood for some, it is a motivator

         16  to keep on going and to achieve. They know they are

         17  important, they have a responsibility to someone

         18  else.

         19                 Often teens will tell me, I am going

         20  to be somebody's mother now, I have to get my life

         21  together.

         22                 Some are now able to look at abusive

         23  relationships that they are in and begin to resolve

         24  it because they worry that their child will be in

         25  danger.
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          2                 Unfortunately, for many it is not too

          3  long after the birth of the baby that their hopes

          4  begin to dim, that they run into barriers and

          5  stumbling blocks.

          6                 Those with family or adult support

          7  and stable housing most often stay on track. Those

          8  lacking this, looking to society for support found

          9  their plans crumbling.

         10                 In order to succeed as parents, teens

         11  need some of the same things that adults do,

         12  consistent emotional support, someone who believes

         13  in them unconditionally, mentors or role models or

         14  guidance from others who have parented. What adult

         15  has not turned to family, grandparents, neighbors,

         16  new mom support groups to learn how to do this?

         17  Adolescents who do not have family connections turn

         18  to agencies for this.

         19                 However, it is a precarious issue.

         20  They live in fear of being judged and having their

         21  children taken away.

         22                 Next, adolescents need skill based

         23  psychoeducational groups which prepare them for what

         24  lies ahead at a level they can relate to, taking a

         25  child birth education class with a group of married
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          2  older women is not the same as one which is

          3  comprised of adolescents, many of whom may be in

          4  stable relationships.

          5                 Programs need to provide adolescents

          6  with a way to attain the concrete services they may

          7  need; to do this, agencies must develop linkages

          8  with the current systems and they must offer

          9  advocacy guides to help the adolescent negotiate

         10  these confusing and complex systems. And actually to

         11  help the social workers negotiate them too.

         12                 At The Door, and in most of the

         13  programs that I know of, we don't advocate that

         14  teens have babies, and we are pretty realistic at

         15  pointing out how hard it really is going to be, but

         16  if that is the teen's choice and their investment in

         17  their future, then we are here to support them and

         18  to help them be the best they can be for themselves

         19  and their children. If you take nothing else away

         20  from today, please leave with this: do not give up

         21  on our teens who choose parenthood. Let's not put up

         22  so many obstacles and barriers that they can never

         23  succeed, for this hurts not only them, but the next

         24  generation as well.

         25                 Let the pregnancy prevention program
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          2  for the next generation begin with an intervention

          3  with their parents today.

          4                 Many of the teens who become parents

          5  today are the children of teen parents who are also

          6  caught in the cycle of first trying to meet basic

          7  needs and secondly, meeting the emotional needs of

          8  their family.

          9                 I am going to just briefly tell you

         10  two case histories of teens that I worked with that

         11  are fairly typical, I think not just of the teens at

         12  The Door but those around the City.

         13                 There is Jackie, who was raised by

         14  her mother in Panama until she was eight, and then

         15  she was sent to live in the United States with a

         16  great aunt in the hopes that she would have a better

         17  life.

         18                 She had to learn another language,

         19  new customs, move from a rural lifestyle to an urban

         20  one. Her mother's intent was good. Unfortunately,

         21  she did not anticipate what the emotional effect

         22  might be on her daughter who was separated from her

         23  support system without the ability to cognitively

         24  understand why.

         25                 Her great aunt provided her with her
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          2  basic needs, but failed to assist her in becoming a

          3  citizen or getting registered legally. She lacked

          4  the ability to make an emotional commitment to her

          5  and over time Jackie lost her ability to communicate

          6  with her mother due to a language barrier and she

          7  was ever more isolated and disconnected emotionally.

          8                 She has graduated from high school,

          9  but because she was not assisted in the citizenship

         10  process is having difficulty finding work or going

         11  on to go to college.

         12                 This is fairly typical stories of

         13  adolescents who experience some kind of family

         14  abandonment, what we would call abandonment at a

         15  very young age. Her mom was very well intentioned

         16  but it nevertheless left her feeling a sense of

         17  loss, and we see that with a lot of adolescents,

         18  that in the early years there was some sense of

         19  family loss and they are not very well connected and

         20  don't often have a sense of belonging.

         21                 Another typical story would be

         22  Tanisha, who was raised by her mom, a single parent.

         23  She has three younger siblings, who she has also

         24  helped her mother to raise. She describes her

         25  relationship with her mother in fairly neutral terms
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          2  and when she moved out to live with her older

          3  boyfriend, he is actually not that much older, he is

          4  19, and his mother, her mother made no complaints.

          5                 At 18 she is now struggling to live

          6  in someone else's home, where she feels she is a

          7  stranger and she always has to defer to her

          8  boyfriend. He is often out with his friends or

          9  working and leaving Tanisha home alone, she feels

         10  very lonely and isolated.

         11                 She had dropped out of high school,

         12  but has since gotten re-enrolled in a GED program.

         13                 She cannot go home to live with her

         14  mother, at this point there is no room. She and the

         15  baby would have to sleep in the living room with her

         16  brother. Many of our teens talk about that feeling

         17  of not belonging, they don't have that family, that

         18  sense of home that they can go on to.

         19                 I am now going to introduce Samantha.

         20  After that, there are some program statistics that I

         21  am not going to read, but I do hope that you will

         22  look at them.

         23                 Samantha, who works with our

         24  parenting teen population at The Door.

         25                 MS. STANLEY: Good afternoon Council
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          2  members and Council Member Ronnie Eldridge.

          3                 My name is Samantha Stanley, and I

          4  supervise the Mental Health Counseling Program at

          5  the Door. I also supervise Life-Sight at The Door,

          6  we have a Life Program in The Door Program. I am

          7  honored today to be here to speak about working

          8  with, I work with adolescent parents and I also work

          9  with pregnant teens. Donna and I work hand-in-hand

         10  at The Door because kids can come into The Door and

         11  go and be seen and decide to keep their pregnancy

         12  and then after that they may also be in individual

         13  counseling and group counseling.

         14                 Let's Take A Stand: The Facts. Many

         15  surveys and reports have been done stating the

         16  adolescent parents are destined to live in poverty,

         17  their children will be drop-outs and are destined to

         18  be welfare recipients.

         19                 How can we take a stand to prevent

         20  these stereotypes from becoming the norm?

         21                 You have just heard my colleague

         22  testify regarding the prenatal teens she provides

         23  services to. I am here today to testify of my

         24  experiences working with teen parents at The Door.

         25                 Based on findings that we have
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          2  gathered at our program, as many as 80 percent of

          3  the young people at The Door have experienced at

          4  least one significant risk factor, i.e., emotional

          5  abuse, physical abuse, unprotected sex and dropping

          6  out of school.

          7                 Our findings indicate that females

          8  which children who have left school tend to have

          9  more traumatic life experiences and experience at

         10  least three or more risk factors previously

         11  mentioned.

         12                 Females which children, for example,

         13  are more likely to have left home, are sexually

         14  abused and have had some involvement with the family

         15  court system than females without children.

         16                 Further findings indicate that young

         17  people, especially females with children, are

         18  dealing with past traumatic experiences, as well as

         19  current traumas.

         20                 At The Door, via the Mental Health

         21  Department, we provide services to these teen

         22  parents who have never dealt with their past life

         23  traumas and are overwhelmed by their current traumas

         24  which have led them to us, where we provide mental

         25  health counseling, crisis intervention, referrals
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          2  and parenting skills classes.

          3                 These young people are those who, for

          4  one reason or another, have experienced many service

          5  barriers, such as lack of housing, lack of financial

          6  stability, job readiness skills and/or lack of

          7  availability of provision for day care services.

          8                 My role at The Door as a mental

          9  health supervisor requires us to deal with these

         10  issues on a daily basis.

         11                 At first blush I wanted to present an

         12  example of a teen parent for which we are providing

         13  services, but I realized I could not sum up all of

         14  their problems in one example.

         15                 We know that no teen parent starts

         16  their pregnancy by thinking that being a parent is

         17  all that magical. However, many of them do not in

         18  their wildest dreams know of the huge barriers to

         19  services that they would encounter.

         20                 We are constantly bombarded with

         21  examples of those who do not attend school or those

         22  who are on public assistance, but what about those

         23  young parents who want to work or attend school but

         24  cannot find adequate day care or ACD vouchers?

         25                 Another concrete example I can give

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  are teen parents who lack housing, forced to live in

          3  overcrowded conditions or with friends because they

          4  were kicked out of their homes when they became

          5  pregnant.

          6                 Yes, not all teen parents are

          7  runaways, but some of them are throw-aways. These

          8  throw-aways are not always those thrown out of their

          9  parents' home but throw-aways in societies where

         10  systems have failed them.

         11                 Typical teen moms that are seen at

         12  the door are mostly referred by the Family Court

         13  systems, social workers, schools and friends.

         14                 These parents start off wanting to do

         15  the right things, but wind up needing crisis

         16  intervention and not always understanding why.

         17                 We provide services for those who are

         18  mandated to complete our parenting classes in order

         19  to keep their children or to get their child out of

         20  the custody of ACS.

         21                 These include those who are currently

         22  residing in the covenant houses and shelters and

         23  those who have been denied EAU assistance three or

         24  four times because they did not fit the criteria of

         25  homelessness. And those who are forced to return
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          2  home to be victimized or thrown out once again. And

          3  those who are denied adequate housing because their

          4  children that are in care are no longer in their

          5  care.

          6                 Some of these teens are lucky if they

          7  are placed in foster care with their children.

          8  However, there is a lack of ACS-funded facilities

          9  and foster homes who are willing to take in both

         10  mother and child, and because of this shortage, some

         11  have to endure the placement of their children in

         12  separate homes without them.

         13                 How can we teach these teen parents

         14  parenting skills without the help of modeling? What

         15  is the solution? Subjecting themselves to being

         16  bounced from shelter to shelter, home to home, a

         17  life of instability for themselves and their

         18  children. The unfulfilled dreams of their own

         19  apartment, the experience of having to sit for hours

         20  applying for public assistance and then being denied

         21  for one reason or another, destined to get pregnant

         22  again, because mythically their finances at public

         23  assistance would be increased, and these are the

         24  lucky ones.

         25                 We have the task of helping those
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          2  with concrete needs. But what about the teen parents

          3  who don't seek our services at all? Never applying

          4  for housing or public assistance. The ones who wind

          5  up in controlling relationships with older men,

          6  looking for someone to take care of them. Those that

          7  we see with low self-esteem. Those who place

          8  themselves at risk for recurrent pregnancies or

          9  victims of domestic violence, because he says he

         10  loves me and I would rather stay with him than go

         11  through any systems. And the increasing number of

         12  teen parents who are HIV positive.

         13                 We currently provide services at at

         14  least six such teen parents who are now HIV

         15  positive. The teen parents I am talking about have

         16  experienced past and present traumas, those whom the

         17  systems have failed and those who were not given a

         18  chance. Because of the lack of funding for

         19  preventive services that we are well equipped to

         20  administer, The Door begins with the treatment

         21  process of trying to handle the dilemmas through

         22  crisis intervention, providing services for those

         23  who are hopeless, depressed and living below the

         24  poverty line.

         25                 In conclusion, I have presented a few
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          2  examples of teen parents and what has gone wrong in

          3  their lives. Let's take a stand and make more

          4  success stories instead of negative images that

          5  stigmatize teen parents today.

          6                 What is the difference between a

          7  17-year-old parent and a 27-year-old parent, besides

          8  the fact that they started off wanting to provide

          9  the best life possible for their children. Let's

         10  take a stand and make the exception the norm and

         11  help provide teen parents with support and services

         12  to ensure chance for their children not to live the

         13  stereotypes for generations to come, but conquer

         14  adversity and become positive future contributors to

         15  our society.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         18                 Do you mind if I just ask a few

         19  questions?

         20                 If you were going to look for

         21  funding, is there no available funding for

         22  prevention, pregnancy prevention at The Door as an

         23  agency?

         24                 MS. STANLEY: We have applied, Donna

         25  can agree with that. We have applied for lots of
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          2  different funding but there is really a lack of

          3  funding.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Where do you

          5  apply? Is it federal, state?

          6                 MS. STANLEY: Local.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I am sorry?

          8                 MS. STANLEY: And different

          9  foundations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And different

         11  foundations.

         12                 MS. STANLEY: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But there is no

         14  regular stream coming out of --

         15                 MS. STANLEY: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: -- Is it the

         17  Health Department? Are they health sources or is it

         18  education or? I don't mean the foundations, let's

         19  say the government agencies, where do you go, do you

         20  know?

         21                 MS. STANLEY: Well, right now the

         22  Department of Health, we have been trying to apply

         23  for fundings at the Department of Health.

         24                 Donna and I both, although we work

         25  with teen parents at The Door, we don't have any
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          2  funding for them. Teen parents fit all of our

          3  programs, so if OASAS is giving funding, then if a

          4  teen parent who is substance abuse we can put them

          5  under that. The same for Ryan White. Some of our

          6  teen parents are funded by Ryan White because they

          7  may be HIV positive. So, whatever funding that we

          8  receive sometimes at The Door, teen parents

          9  sometimes fit that criteria and so therefore we

         10  service them under those different grants.

         11                 Does anybody have any questions?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Margarita.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Something in

         15  your statistical data that confused me was that

         16  adolescents with a history of abuse were

         17  significantly less likely to have a previous

         18  abortion; can you explain that?

         19                 MS. ZAERGLE: In other words, the ones

         20  who had a history of abuse were more likely when

         21  they got pregnant to continue their pregnancy.

         22                 I guess I didn't include the

         23  statistic in there. There were a number of teens for

         24  whom this was a second pregnancy. They had

         25  terminated their first pregnancy. But when they
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          2  compared why did some teens seem to terminate a

          3  pregnancy and other ones didn't it seems that those

          4  with the history of abuse were more likely not to

          5  terminate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Not to

          7  terminate.

          8                 MS. ZAERGLE: Not to terminate.

          9  Feeling very positively about wanting to have a

         10  baby.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is very

         12  interesting.

         13                 MS. ZAERGLE: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Miriam.

         18                 MS. SPIRO: Good afternoon. My name is

         19  Miriam Spiro and I am Counsel to the Reproductive

         20  Rights Project at the New York Civil Liberties

         21  Union. It is an honor for me to be able to testify

         22  before the Committee on Women's Issues, so thank you

         23  very much for inviting me to do so.

         24                 New York law clearly provides that

         25  minors have the right to and are capable of
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          2  consenting to confidential family planning and

          3  abortion services without parental involvement.

          4                 Under New York Public Health Law,

          5  minors can also consent to confidential testing and

          6  treatment for sexually and transmitted diseases and

          7  confidential HIV testing.

          8                 In fact, the public health law

          9  specifically states that all records concerning the

         10  treatment of a minor for venereal disease or the

         11  performance of an abortion cannot be released to the

         12  parent or guardian of such minor.

         13                 Federal and State Medicaid law and

         14  the Child Health Plus Program require that Family

         15  Planning Services be provided to sexually active

         16  minors. New York State Medicaid regulations and the

         17  Child Health Plus Program, otherwise known as CHP,

         18  also entitle minors to abortion services, yet many

         19  minors, as well as large numbers of the

         20  professionals who work with and treat young people

         21  are not aware that they are entitled to these

         22  services or do not know how to find them.

         23                 One problem is that the Department of

         24  Health markets CHP as a program for young children.

         25  There is no mention of contraception, prenatal care
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          2  or abortion services in any of the advertising for

          3  CHP. As a result, teens who are eligible for CHP are

          4  unaware of their right to reproductive health care

          5  services under that plan, and many providers also

          6  may be unaware that CHP will reimburse for such

          7  services.

          8                 Moreover, there appears to be a real

          9  lack of monitoring to ensure that family planning

         10  and abortion services are provided to minors.

         11                 In addition, there has been virtually

         12  no training with regard to confidentiality, and no

         13  safeguards are in place to ensure that insurance

         14  company practices, like EOBs, Explanations of

         15  Benefits, do not breach confidentiality.

         16                 As a result, we are concerned about

         17  possible breaches of confidentiality that will

         18  discourage utilization and harm young people.

         19                 Another problem is that health care

         20  providers are not adequately trained about minors'

         21  legal right to confidential reproductive health

         22  care. Confusion about teenagers ability to consent

         23  on their own to family planning and abortion

         24  services, significantly undermines access to such

         25  services and threatens their availability.
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          2                 Last year, for instance, the New York

          3  Health and Hospitals Corporation issued a confusing

          4  policy regarding minors ability to consent to

          5  abortion procedures.

          6                 The policy was written in such a

          7  convoluted way that it discouraged doctors from

          8  respecting minors legal right to obtain an abortion

          9  without parental involvement.

         10                 Although HHC has acknowledged to us

         11  that minors may give informed consent to abortion,

         12  it has not yet disseminated a clear policy to its

         13  providers.

         14                 As a result, many HHC physicians will

         15  be hesitant to provide abortion services without

         16  parental involvement, even though this is contrary

         17  to New York law.

         18                 Teens who seek prenatal care from

         19  hospital clinics also run into problems. Under New

         20  York law, pregnant minors may consent to any

         21  medical, dental, health and hospital services

         22  related to prenatal care without parental

         23  involvement.

         24                 When a minor consents to her own

         25  medical treatment, all information regarding that
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          2  treatment must be kept confidential. Yet, some

          3  providers are under the misconception that they must

          4  report pregnant teens to the State Central Registry,

          5  which is the child abuse reporting hot line in New

          6  York. That is not true.

          7                 Some providers mistakingly believe

          8  that the State Central Registry is the statutory

          9  rape hot line, and that they are really reporting

         10  statutory rape, when in fact by calling the hot line

         11  they are reporting child abuse.

         12                 Some of these reports trigger

         13  investigations, and during the course of such

         14  investigations, parents are notified of their

         15  daughter's pregnancy. That statutory rape reporting

         16  may vitiate a teenager's right to confidential

         17  prenatal care.

         18                 It is unclear to us how widespread

         19  this reporting has become. However, as word gets out

         20  to the teenage community that their parents may be

         21  reported for child abuse if they seek prenatal care,

         22  it is likely that fewer teens will seek such care.

         23                 Minors must also depend on City

         24  hospitals and clinics for contraception.

         25  School-based clinics, which are an important source
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          2  of care for uninsured young people, are prevented

          3  from dispensing contraception, with the exception of

          4  condoms, even when a parent requests it.

          5                 Each additional appointment that we

          6  require teens to schedule in order to find

          7  contraception makes it less likely that teens will

          8  protect themselves against unwanted pregnancies.

          9                 Simply put, we need to make it easier

         10  for teenagers to obtain birth control prescriptions

         11  and devices.

         12                 We also need to ensure that pregnant

         13  and parenting teens are getting the education that

         14  they are entitled to under New York law.

         15                 We have received reports that

         16  pregnant teens often feel pressure to leave their

         17  regular schools and transfer to specialty programs

         18  for pregnant and parenting teens, also known as P

         19  schools.

         20                 In order to find out more about the

         21  issues facing teen parents, the teen health

         22  initiative of the NYCLU Reproductive Rights Project,

         23  trained pregnant and parenting teens in P schools to

         24  interview other teens about their experiences.

         25                 Approximately 25 students were
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          2  interviewed. Part of the interview focused upon why

          3  students transferred out of their regular schools.

          4  Some students left school because they felt unsafe,

          5  or had a long commute to school and did not feel

          6  well enough to make the trip.

          7                 Other pregnant teens felt pressure to

          8  leave and/or were counseled to transfer to a P

          9  school.

         10                 One teen said, "I was suggested to go

         11  to another school by a guidance counselor, actually

         12  by a lot of teachers. They kind of isolated me from

         13  everyone and my teachers did not treat me the same

         14  as before."

         15                 Another student explained, "My

         16  guidance counselor wanted to help me get into a

         17  different school. She thought it would be better for

         18  me."

         19                 Other students said that they had

         20  been doing poorly in school before they got pregnant

         21  and they felt the school wanted them out anyway.

         22                 It was clear from the interviews that

         23  pregnant and parenting teens felt they had found a

         24  haven in their P schools. Yet, given the new Regents

         25  requirements for high school graduation, an
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          2  assessment needs to be done to determine the impact

          3  of these requirements on P school students and what

          4  resources may be necessary and should be planned to

          5  enable these teens to graduate.

          6                 Pregnant and parenting teens are also

          7  faced with serious problems in the foster care

          8  system. One parenting teen who was interviewed said

          9  that ACS had difficulty finding a placement for her

         10  and her baby. While awaiting placement, she and her

         11  baby were kept in St. Vincent's hospital for two

         12  months. She was not allowed to leave the hospital

         13  unless her social worker came and took her out. So

         14  she was unable to attend school during this period.

         15                 Her guidance counselor brought her

         16  work from her teachers, and she attempted to keep up

         17  with her school work on her own; however, she ended

         18  up leaving her regular school.

         19                 At the time of the interview, she was

         20  attending a P school and living at Covenant House,

         21  another temporary placement, until ACS found a space

         22  in their independent living program for her.

         23                 We clearly need to find better ways

         24  of serving our pregnant and parenting teen

         25  population and foster care.
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          2                 The teen health initiative of the

          3  NYCLU Reproductive Rights Project tries to remedy

          4  some of the problems I mentioned, by educating

          5  teenagers and health care providers about minors'

          6  rights to confidential health care.

          7                 We train a group of peer educators

          8  who run workshops for other teens, and we also

          9  provide workshops for hospitals around the City on

         10  teens' health care rights. We are currently writing

         11  a booklet on the rights of pregnant and parenting

         12  teenagers, and with the help of cartoonist and

         13  author Kathryn Arnoldi, we have developed a postcard

         14  that informs pregnant parenting teens of their right

         15  to stay in school and to participate in extra

         16  curriculur activities, and you should have that

         17  postcard with you actually.

         18                 However, a much more widespread

         19  campaign to train providers, advertise the

         20  availability of reproductive health care services

         21  for teens, and to ensure that parenting teenagers

         22  understand their rights is desperately needed.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Can you go back

         25  to the hot line and the statutory rape and just
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          2  explain it a little more for me, because I didn't

          3  understand it?

          4                 MS. SPIRO: Sure.

          5                 The Director of our Teen Health

          6  Initiative runs workshops in hospitals for various

          7  providers and an issue that arose repeatedly was

          8  that providers were telling us, well a lot of these

          9  pregnant teens who come to us for prenatal care, you

         10  know, have older boyfriends, or because they are

         11  under the age of 17, technically they are considered

         12  victims of sexual misconduct.

         13                 So, that is statutory rape and we

         14  have to report that. And they call the child abuse

         15  hot line, the State Central Registry, thinking that

         16  it is a statutory rape reporting hot line. It is

         17  not.

         18                 So, there are really two problems.

         19  One is that some providers are under the

         20  misconception that they are reporting a crime, that

         21  the crime they are reporting is statutory rape,

         22  rather than child abuse.

         23                 And the other problem is that they

         24  think they have to report child abuse whenever they

         25  see a pregnant teen. This obviously vitiates their
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          2  rights to confidential prenatal care.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I ask a

          4  question?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If in fact the

          7  provider has been told that what occurred was

          8  statutory rape, do they have an obligation to report

          9  that? If it really was that?

         10                 MS. SPIRO: No, they don't. They have

         11  an obligation to report child abuse or neglect.

         12                 If a provider meets with a teenager

         13  and feels that that teenager is an abusive

         14  relationship and that their parent or guardian

         15  should know, or knows about the fact that they are

         16  in an abusive relationship, then they are obligated

         17  to report child abuse or neglect. They are not

         18  obligated to report every time they see a pregnant

         19  teen who is having consensual sex with an older

         20  person.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: But the child

         22  abuse and neglect is against the parent of the teen.

         23                 MS. SPIRO: That's right. It is not

         24  against the person that they are engaging in sex

         25  with.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It wouldn't be

          3  against the adult, the person who is over 21

          4  engaging in the relationship with the teen, with the

          5  young woman, right?

          6                 MS. SPIRO: That is absolutely right.

          7  It is against the parent only.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, let's say

          9  the young woman who comes to you is in a

         10  relationship that is a domestic violence

         11  relationship, are you also saying that they are then

         12  reporting that to the child abuse hot line?

         13                 MS. SPIRO: No. What they are

         14  reporting is child abuse, period. They are not

         15  reporting the person who may be victimizing the

         16  teenager to the authorities.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We are

         18  reporting statutory rape to go to the DA's office?

         19                 MS. SPIRO: Exactly.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what you

         21  are saying is that telephone calls come into the

         22  line for a child care --

         23                 MS. SPIRO: Child abuse hot line, the

         24  State Central Registry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Let me
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          2  understand this.

          3                 The people who call, call because

          4  they think they are calling to report sexual abuse?

          5                 MS. SPIRO: Some think they are

          6  reporting that. Some think they are reporting child

          7  abuse and think they should.

          8                 Some providers think that they should

          9  be reporting parents whenever the teenager gets

         10  pregnant.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it has

         12  nothing to do necessarily with the age of the

         13  alleged father, right?

         14                 MS. SPIRO: That's right. Sometimes. I

         15  mean there are different --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But in this

         17  kind of thing we are talking about right now, they

         18  are doing it simply because the young woman is

         19  pregnant and they feel obviously if a young girl has

         20  gotten pregnant, the parents are being abusive or

         21  not paying attention?

         22                 MS. SPIRO: That is absolutely

         23  correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And these are

         25  the professionals who are taking care of these
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          2  people when they go there for help?

          3                 MS. SPIRO: That's right. We really

          4  need to have a widespread training program for the

          5  professionals that work with teenagers in City

          6  hospitals and clinics.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: One more

          8  question from my part. Some time ago we had a

          9  hearing here, there was a young woman who was

         10  prosecuted recently, got time in jail.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Tabatha.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And in the

         13  hearings that occurred here, we were looking into

         14  the question of lack of health care, and how the

         15  particular mother go through the process of maybe

         16  being with Medicare herself, but once the child is

         17  in the process the Medicaid card had to be issued

         18  for the child, but the card cannot be issued because

         19  the child has not born (sic). Are you doing anything

         20  in regard to this? Are you looking into this issue?

         21                 MS. SPIRO: Absolutely. We were at

         22  that hearing actually. We wrote a long letter to the

         23  judge on Ms. Walron's behalf describing what should

         24  have happened under the system. And we have been

         25  looking into whether we should be bringing
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          2  litigation to deal with this issue.

          3                 It is my understanding that a newborn

          4  Medicaid bill has just passed in the State Assembly

          5  and Senate and was signed into law as part of the

          6  Medicaid budget.

          7                 So, right now we are actually working

          8  on a letter to the Department of Health and HCFA,

          9  telling them what their obligations are and asking

         10  them what their intentions are, so that if in fact

         11  this law isn't implemented effectively as of July

         12  1st when it is supposed to go into effect, we will

         13  be prepared to bring litigation.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And just for my

         15  own understanding, because I have been looking at

         16  this issue and trying to figure out how I can

         17  improve the situation for the teens that are in this

         18  situation, the laws that had been approved that you

         19  are aware of, you understand that they will cover

         20  this issue and will resolve the issue if they are

         21  implemented appropriately?

         22                 MS. SPIRO: Well, the law that was

         23  passed actually reiterates what the law is now and

         24  it is not being followed.

         25                 Under federal Medicaid statutes,
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          2  providers are supposed to accept the Medicaid number

          3  of the mother to treat the child for the first year

          4  of life if she is on Medicaid. Part of what happened

          5  in Ms. Walron's case was the provider did not accept

          6  the mother's Medicaid number on behalf of her son.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then they were

          8  violating the law.

          9                 MS. SPIRO: Absolutely. It is also

         10  unclear to us whether providers are being told that

         11  the children have to have their own Medicaid card or

         12  number by the State Department of Health.

         13                 We don't really know what is going

         14  on, we don't know what is leading to the confusion,

         15  but there is confusion out there and many people

         16  seem to be surprised when we say by the way you

         17  should be accepting mother's Medicaid numbers on

         18  behalf on children up through the first year of

         19  life.

         20                 The other problem, as you know it,

         21  and heard it during the hearing that you held, is a

         22  problem with enrollment. There are no time limits

         23  for when children have to be enrolled and so newborn

         24  children aren't receiving the services they are

         25  entitled to under the early periodic screening and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  diagnostic testing program. They are supposed to

          3  receive immunizations within their first month of

          4  life that they are not receiving because they

          5  haven't yet been enrolled in Medicaid, even though

          6  they are supposed to be receiving this stuff anyway

          7  because mom is enrolled in Medicaid. So there are

          8  all sorts of things going on which shouldn't be, and

          9  providers as well as the State Department of Health

         10  need to do a better job of following the laws that

         11  already exist.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Madam Chair, I

         13  don't know if you were planning to do a follow-up on

         14  that meeting, on that hearing that we have. But I

         15  think that we should go further on this, because the

         16  day that this hearing took place, the people who

         17  came to give testimony gave inaccurate testimony.

         18  Because I remember very clear taking my notes and

         19  the person after person who came to testify from the

         20  Health Department indicated that the child needed to

         21  be enrolled. They never said under the testimony

         22  what you just said.

         23                 MS. SPIRO: I am not sure they are

         24  aware of that law. Which is very troubling.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, they
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          2  should be. And if they are not, it doesn't justify

          3  it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: We were

          5  planning to do a follow-up hearing with the Health

          6  Committee and I think we are having some difficulty

          7  scheduling it. But we are planning to have it, and

          8  if we don't have it with the Health Committee we

          9  will have it by ourselves.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I think it is

         11  very important. Particularly when cases then come in

         12  front of a judge judging somebody and the

         13  probability is that this woman, for being a woman,

         14  is going to go to jail more likely than not, and she

         15  did not commit no crime.

         16                 Okay, thank you.

         17                 MS. SPIRO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Is there a

         19  representative of the Health Department here? For

         20  the record, I just would like to have the record

         21  read that the Health Department declined to send

         22  somebody to testify because they are too busy with

         23  the encephalitis spraying, and they were supposed to

         24  have somebody to listen and I don't even think they

         25  are here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just to follow

          3  up on that question, Ronnie, do you know, is

          4  Legislative Affairs here? The Mayor's Legislative

          5  Affairs Office?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I don't think

          7  so, no.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Back to the

          9  reporting, the confusion. It seems to me there is

         10  two possibilities, one is that people are making a

         11  mistake, and spoke to is a need of a training, you

         12  know, a big training program, those are the things

         13  that people may be doing it deliberately kind of in

         14  their mind what the definition of child abuse is.

         15  Would then calling the hot line, when in fact it

         16  doesn't meet the definition of child abuse, wouldn't

         17  that be somewhere like filing a false crime report,

         18  which is illegal?

         19                 MS. SPIRO: No, it's not. If you make

         20  a report on a good faith basis, and you are a

         21  mandatory reporter, which health care providers are,

         22  you aren't going to be punished for making that

         23  report because obviously they want to encourage

         24  people to report --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But like even
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          2  if you know you have manipulated the definition, do

          3  you know what I mean?

          4                 MS. SPIRO: I don't think that people

          5  are doing this necessarily out of a malicious place.

          6  I think that these are people that truly believe

          7  that if they are faced with a pregnant teen, there

          8  must be child abuse or neglect going on at home and

          9  I think it is up to us to increase awareness.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         11  Because I was of course thinking it was evil. Have

         12  you, and I am sure you have, had conversations with

         13  the agencies that are involved in proposed training

         14  program and let them know this was happening and

         15  what was their responses?

         16                 MS. SPIRO: Well, what we do is send

         17  out the Director of our Teen Health Initiative and

         18  the Director of our Reproductive Rights Project

         19  Donna Lieberman and myself go out and do workshops,

         20  so we do the best that we can to spread the word and

         21  educate people as to what child abuse and neglect

         22  is, what happens when you make a report and what

         23  happens to confidentiality when you make a report.

         24  But other than that, we need help.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: It seems you
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          2  also have the same characteristics other groups have

          3  which is underfunding, right?

          4                 MS. SPIRO: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I just?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I don't know if

          8  this is the kind of stuff you do with the Committee,

          9  but can we as a Committee send a letter to the

         10  Commissioners in question saying that this issue was

         11  raised and they weren't here, and we want to know

         12  what they know about it?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: With a whole

         14  list of questions, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do we have any

         17  figures any place about the fathers?

         18                 Somebody earlier, I think Ms. Myers

         19  from the Comptroller's Office, talked about that

         20  some men have fathered several, over 21 have

         21  fathered several children or a good number of

         22  children, has anybody studied birth certificates or

         23  things, do we have any ideas of numbers and figures?

         24  No?

         25                 Well, I am assuming that in a good
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          2  number of births on a birth certificate will be a

          3  mother and a father. Is that an assumption not fair?

          4  Is that not a good assumption? The fathers will not

          5  be reported?

          6                 MS. SPIRO: On the birth certificate?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They ask the

          8  father's name.

          9                 MS. SPIRO: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: They are saying

         11  the father's name so it is conceivably possible to

         12  go through birth certificates and see if the

         13  father's name is on more than one certificate. Is

         14  there any compilation of information about the

         15  number of father parents, you know, with the number

         16  of children that you know of?

         17                 MS. SPIRO: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That you know

         19  of. Okay. Thank you.

         20                 Does anybody have any questions?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am going in

         24  another direction now.

         25                 When any young person goes to a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  hospital to have a child, they register the child

          3  obviously with the mother, because the mother is

          4  there. What you are saying is that for the most part

          5  of the time this child is born under the mother

          6  only, and the name of the father never is

          7  registered, for the most part of the time?

          8                 MS. ZAERGLE: In order to put the

          9  father on he has to fill out paternity papers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the mother

         11  cannot be alone?

         12                 MS. ZAERGLE: Yes, she can be on it

         13  alone, or if she wants the father to be on it, he

         14  must sign papers that say -- if they are not legally

         15  married he must sign papers that says --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Accepting?

         17                 MS. ZAERGLE: -- Saying he is the

         18  father.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then he

         20  would become subject to child support.

         21                 MS. ZAERGLE: Exactly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Okay.

         23                 MS. ZAERGLE: And then sometime,

         24  neither one of us spoke about it, but at some point

         25  the issue of fathers is one that I hope --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Critical. I

          3  think we can have a whole hearing on it.

          4                 MS. ZAERGLE: -- That people will

          5  speak up more about.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I mean, it is

          7  like everything else, that the burden is always on

          8  the woman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

         10  authorities are there in the hospital, and not

         11  asking the mother who the father of this child is?

         12                 MS. ZAERGLE: Oh, no, they are

         13  absolutely asking and they are supplying the mom

         14  with the paternity paper to get completed, if it

         15  wasn't signed before the birth and the father isn't

         16  available at the time. You are only in the hospital

         17  now about a day, maybe two days, so if the father

         18  hasn't come but the mother still wants him to be on

         19  it, they can add the father after. When the mother

         20  leaves the hospital she gets the birth certificate

         21  through the mail, it only has her name and she

         22  submits like an amended birth certificate with the

         23  proper paternity papers, then the Department of

         24  Health corrects the birth certificate and the father

         25  will be listed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: From an

          3  educator point of view, your experience in your

          4  program, the vast majority of people that you take

          5  care of in there show the birth certificate without

          6  the father?

          7                 MS. ZAERGLE: It is probably split. We

          8  work really heavily with the fathers and so those

          9  teams who are still with their partners at the time

         10  of birth have their partners put on the birth

         11  certificates. But those teams whose relationship has

         12  ended may or may not want to have him on the birth

         13  certificate, along with the responsibility of

         14  parenthood comes rights.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I may sound

         16  right-winged on this one, but I have the right to be

         17  right-winged from time to time, due to the fact that

         18  I am so left, right? I am very surprised about this

         19  because I think that one of the things that I look

         20  at the right of women is also to make clear that

         21  when a child is born, due to natural insemination,

         22  not artificial insemination, that those men should

         23  be responsible for the men of this child. And I

         24  mean, I am appalled to learn that when these

         25  children are born, it is not a mandate to locate who
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          2  is the man who fathered this child.

          3                 MS. ZAERGLE: The teens can, if he is

          4  not in the picture anymore or he won't sign the form

          5  or whatever, The Door has a legal department, we do

          6  send them to the legal department and they can go to

          7  court and have him put on, the court then orders

          8  paternity testing, which you can't do until the baby

          9  is before a certain age, but then they will do

         10  paternity testing and then put the father on it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: At the cost of

         12  who, can you tell me?

         13                 MS. ZAERGLE: I think it is at the

         14  cost of the courts, the taxpayers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The person have

         16  to request this to look into it, and then the court

         17  have to decide they are going to order the paternity

         18  test? That is the procedure?

         19                 MS. ZAERGLE: I think they always

         20  decide to order it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Always?

         22                 MS. ZAERGLE: Yes, on the basis the

         23  mother is saying he is the father of my baby and I

         24  need this blood test to prove it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Just one other

          4  question, do you know of any fathers that have been

          5  prosecuted for statutory rape? Is that very

          6  uncommon?

          7                 MS. ZAERGLE: I don't. But then that

          8  doesn't mean that it doesn't happen.

          9                 I can tell you, though, that they are

         10  not going to be prosecuted as a result of phone

         11  calls to the child abuse hot line.

         12                 MS. STANLEY: The only cases I have

         13  seen is if parents who are involved in that

         14  teenagers' life want to prosecute the father. In

         15  most cases, though, then no one is doing any type --

         16  and we have seen kids who have been under 12, 13, 14

         17  who have been pregnant, so I guess when she is doing

         18  the report about what they are seeing in the

         19  hospitals, at some point you are bringing up in your

         20  mind, isn't this child abuse, and although they are

         21  trying to make the case against the father, someone

         22  is thinking, well, how could a 12-year-old who had

         23  parents be pregnant? So, a lot of times the doctors

         24  are thinking that they need to make a statement,

         25  because we are mandated reporters also, that they
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          2  need to make a report on behalf of this young person

          3  because someone has to be responsible as to why this

          4  12 or 13 year old --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Well, it would

          6  seem to me it would be the adult who impregnated

          7  her, wouldn't it be? Doesn't that make sense?

          8                 MS. STANLEY: I know, but unless there

          9  is someone who is going to press the case, normally

         10  we don't see that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 One more question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: One more

         15  question. Samantha, I think this is for you, but

         16  whoever has the answer.

         17                 With the new HIV names reporting and

         18  partner notification, let's say a young woman comes

         19  in, she is pregnant and she is HIV positive and the

         20  government goes out to tell her partner, are they

         21  also allowed to tell the partner that she is

         22  pregnant, (a)? And (b) if they are not allowed, do

         23  they do that, you know, anyway?

         24                 MS. ZAERGLE: I think That the partner

         25  notification is confidential notification. I don't
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          2  think they go to his home and say your girlfriend

          3  Mary Smith gave us your name as a contact, she is

          4  HIV positive.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You are right.

          6  You are right.

          7                 MS. ZAERGLE: I think they come to his

          8  home and say your name was given to us by someone as

          9  a contact and you need to get yourself tested for

         10  HIV.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, you are

         12  absolutely right.

         13                 MS. ZAERGLE: I mean, he might be able

         14  to figure out.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, you are

         16  right. Thank you. No, you are right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Ann Cook, Joan Davis and Sandy

         20  Socolar, please.

         21                 So, who is going to go first, Ann?

         22                 MS. COOK: I guess. Yes.

         23                 MS. COOK: My name is Ann Cook, and I

         24  am the Co-chair of the Education and Day Care

         25  Committee of the Comptroller's Citywide Task Force
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          2  on Adolescent Pregnancy, Parenting and Prevention,

          3  and I want to thank the Committee for giving me this

          4  opportunity to bring some issues to your attention.

          5                 My purpose in testifying before this

          6  Committee today is to bring to the Council's

          7  attention a critical situation affecting parenting

          8  teens who are now in high school, or those who are

          9  attempting to return to school, to obtain their high

         10  school diploma.

         11                 Due to newly enacted state education

         12  policy that has been alluded to by several speakers,

         13  with respect to graduation requirements, the teens,

         14  along with their non-parenting classmates face

         15  serious new challenges in their attempt to obtain a

         16  high school diploma.

         17                 As members of the Council probably

         18  know, standards has become the educational mantra of

         19  the nineties. Policy-makers tell us we need high

         20  standards to provide our children with a world class

         21  education. It sounds right, who wouldn't applaud the

         22  demand that kids learn to read, to write, to think

         23  and to become productive citizens? Who wouldn't

         24  support such goals? After all, who would argue for

         25  low standards?
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          2                 It is clear that standards aren't the

          3  issue, it is the assessments, the way the state

          4  determines whether the standards are in place, that

          5  is the source of the difficulty we face.

          6                 For despite warnings from the

          7  National Research Council, which recently concluded

          8  in a study commissioned by the U.S. Congress, that

          9  no high stakes decision should be based on a single

         10  instrument. New York State's Education Department

         11  has done such that, it has tied graduation and the

         12  issuance of a high school diploma to a single one

         13  size fits all set of exams.

         14                 We in New York City know all about

         15  high stakes exams, we just saw the consequences last

         16  week with the Citywide tests. Thus, students who may

         17  have attended four, even five years of school,

         18  completed and passed courses, who can demonstrate

         19  and validate the knowledge and skills necessary to

         20  obtain the diploma, will no longer be granted a

         21  local diploma.

         22                 From June onwards, no student in New

         23  York State will receive a high school diploma if he

         24  or she does not pass five regents exams, despite

         25  other compelling evidence warranting graduation.
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          2                 In the case of the English language

          3  Regents required for those graduating in June 2000.

          4  This now means a two-day, six-hour exam. This is not

          5  to argue against accountability. To the contrary.

          6  The core students need to learn basic skills. And

          7  they need to learn and demonstrate those skills. But

          8  the research tells us that all good educational

          9  programs must take account of individual differences

         10  and learning styles. Courses taken in high school

         11  should be directly related to the students' course

         12  of study and students should be able to apply and

         13  demonstrate what they learn in multiple ways. The

         14  new Regents policy does not allow for any such

         15  individual differences or learning styles.

         16                 The new State requirements also

         17  eliminate vocational education as a viable

         18  alternative for high school students seeking a trade

         19  or a vocation. While in the past, vocational

         20  students were able to demonstrate their ability by

         21  passing New York State and New York City endorsed

         22  exams focusing on vocational skills and could obtain

         23  a vocationally endorsed diploma, this is no longer

         24  an option.

         25                 These exams have been eliminated.
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          2  And, even if they were still available, students

          3  would no longer be able to use them to obtain a

          4  diploma. Thus, vocational education will continue to

          5  decline despite impressive examples of its

          6  effectiveness in helping train students for viable

          7  school to career options.

          8                 While this new policy affects large

          9  numbers of vulnerable students, it is particularly

         10  devastating for teen parents. Many, though they

         11  struggle with the added responsibility of

         12  parenthood, have sought to continue their education

         13  against great odds.

         14                 Finding quality day care continues to

         15  be a major problem.

         16                 Nonetheless, many who may need more

         17  time to complete their studies return to school to

         18  seek a better opportunity for themselves and their

         19  child. Now these students face the likely prospect

         20  of not graduating and not earning a diploma.

         21                 Many of these teen parents who

         22  frequently serve as the family breadwinner, will

         23  have their employment opportunities narrowed, if

         24  they fail to complete the Regents requirements.

         25                 Statistics tell us that lack of a
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          2  high school diploma results in severe economic

          3  disadvantage. In the case of the teen parent, it

          4  affects not only the young mother but her child as

          5  well.

          6                 The state's new policy not only

          7  affects students at the end of their high school

          8  career when they attempt to graduate. Since schools

          9  are being closely monitored in new performance-drive

         10  accountability schemes, particular attention is

         11  being paid to whether each school's statistics show

         12  an overall increase in test scores and graduation

         13  rates. If schools have too many students, who do not

         14  past the tests, they run the risk of finding

         15  themselves listed as priority schools, precursors to

         16  the dreaded SURR school designation, which can

         17  result in City or state takeover.

         18                 Since the school statistics are

         19  generated by the performance of its students, it is

         20  in the school's interest to protect itself by trying

         21  to limit the number of students whose previous

         22  school performance and credit accumulation is shaky.

         23  In other words, to try to keep the number of risk

         24  students to a minimum.

         25                 A student who has accumulated only
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          2  ten credits by the time he or she reaches that age

          3  of 16 or 17 constitutes a poor risk.

          4                 Since such a student represents the

          5  statistical negative, the urge to counsel such

          6  students out of that school becomes intense, as we

          7  have heard.

          8                 As a result of this student shell

          9  game, reports are now beginning to circulate that

         10  schools are counseling out many of these marginal

         11  students.

         12                 While actual data on how many of

         13  these students have been affected is sketchy, some

         14  patterns seem to be emerging. GED program

         15  registration is up. Drop-out rates appear to be

         16  rising, and notices encouraging students to attend

         17  PM school, where they can more quickly accumulate

         18  credits, are appearing everywhere.

         19                 Moreover, students who would benefit

         20  tremendously from a program like Coop-Tech, New York

         21  City's only BOCES program, which just last year

         22  completed a $45 million renovation, are being

         23  discouraged from attending and taking advantage of

         24  its 16 state-of-the-art trade programs. This is the

         25  result of students who spend half the day at Tech,
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          2  half the day at their academic high schools, and are

          3  being told that they need to spend a full day in

          4  courses intended to help them pass the Regents exam,

          5  not in programs where they might learn a skill, earn

          6  an apprenticeship job, or secure a union card.

          7                 While these patterns impact on all

          8  students, they affect teen parents most acutely.

          9  Teen parents need child care in order to pursue

         10  their education. The establishment of the Board of

         11  Education's LYFE Program is the recognition of the

         12  urgent need for quality child care if young parents

         13  are to finish school. We know that finishing school,

         14  obtaining a high school diploma, is the most

         15  effective way to ensure a viable economic future for

         16  the teen mother and her child. And yet, when teen

         17  parents, whose babies may have been in school-based

         18  day care leave their home school to attend a GED

         19  program, or PM school, the day care does not travel

         20  with them.

         21                 The assumption seems to be that once

         22  these youngsters are out of mainstream academic

         23  programs, someone will take care of their child.

         24                 This was particularly evident when

         25  over the summer the Board closed Sarah J. Hale High

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  School, while all students had to be reassigned,

          3  those with children attending the day care located

          4  in the school were particularly affected. Where

          5  could they go to finish school and have their

          6  children cared for? There were few possibilities,

          7  and reports are that many of these teen moms have

          8  simply given up.

          9                 Just for the record, it should be

         10  noted that the state's new graduation policy also

         11  adversely affects at least four other subgroups of

         12  students: new English language learners, students

         13  with learning disabilities, those students who were

         14  in many of the small innovative programs across the

         15  City which have developed a system of performance

         16  assessment and who are successfully serving a large

         17  population of vulnerable students, and as we have

         18  seen, those in vocational programs.

         19                 To date, despite urgings from school

         20  administrators, and child advocates across the

         21  state, the State Education Department has no safety

         22  net in place, and although the State Education

         23  Commissioner, Richard Mills, admits that these new

         24  requirements will result in many "casualties", he

         25  believes that this high stake strategy is justified
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          2  in the name of standards.

          3                 Parenthetically it should be noted

          4  that independent schools across the state have not

          5  and do not plan to have their students sit the

          6  Regents exams.

          7                 What to do? In the shortrun, there

          8  are some supports that should be put in place for

          9  students attempting to finish school. Many attend PM

         10  schools or would like to, others see the GED as

         11  their best hope. But the lack of day care facilities

         12  in both the PM schools and the GED programs limit

         13  the usefullness of these programs for teen parents.

         14                 As an initial recommendation PM

         15  schools, the sites, should be chosen because they

         16  already have LYFE sites and are located in

         17  neighborhoods which would be accessible to

         18  significant numbers of teen parents.

         19                 Ultimately we must recognize that

         20  harder and inappropriate tests do not achieve high

         21  standards or better schools.

         22                 The challenge is not to fail more

         23  kids, but rather to find ways to have more young

         24  people achieve.

         25                 As an overall policy, I urge the City
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          2  Council to press the State Education Department to

          3  recognize the needs of our most vulnerable young

          4  people and to create a safety net which will allow

          5  them to obtain both a quality education and a high

          6  school diploma.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I think we will

          8  go along and then we will come back and ask

          9  questions.

         10                 I just again want to apologize for

         11  the way I am sitting at the table, or standing so

         12  much, but I seem to have some muscle difficulty in

         13  my leg. Thank you.

         14                 MS. SOCOLAR: Thank you. We are

         15  grateful to you for holding this important hearing

         16  on the needs of New York City's teen parents and for

         17  this opportunity to let you kow about the proposals

         18  that our Task Force Child Care Committee is

         19  recommending on ways that the Agency for Child

         20  Development could increase access by teen parents to

         21  safe, monitored child care.

         22                 We all know that teen parents' life

         23  chances depend first and foremost on our helping

         24  them return to school to a supportive learning

         25  environment where they can get the education and
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          2  training they need to make a future for themselves

          3  and their child, but that in turn depends on whether

          4  the teen parent has access to child care, and there

          5  is a critical shortage of safe, monitored child care

          6  for our youngest children from zero to three.

          7                 There are also problems that our

          8  Child Care Task Force, Child Care Committee, has

          9  identified ways that the Agency for Child

         10  Development needs to deal with to ensure that the

         11  child care programs it funds for teen parents are

         12  able to serve them adequately.

         13                 The LYFE Program, Living for Young

         14  Families in Education, providing school-based child

         15  care jointly funded by ACD and the Board of

         16  Education, currently at 46 schools, with ACD funding

         17  currently capped at $4 million, only enough to serve

         18  700 children.

         19                 The 60 ACD contract family day care

         20  programs that provide child care in certified

         21  monitored homes capped since 1992 at serving only

         22  7,800 children of all ages.

         23                 These are the recommendations that we

         24  have presented to Commissioner Vandor and we hope

         25  that your Committee will follow up with them on.
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          2                 First of all, priority status for

          3  teen parents: ACD should grant priority status to

          4  teen parents within their respective categories,

          5  family assistance or non-family assistance - for

          6  filling available vacancies in ACD-funded centers

          7  and Family Day Care Programs. State law authorizes

          8  local districts to establish their own priorities

          9  for serving families eligible for child care, so ACD

         10  is free to establish that priority.

         11                 Establishing presumptive eligibility

         12  for the teen parent: ACD needs to direct its

         13  resource area offices to allow teenagers to apply

         14  for child care and establish their presumptive

         15  eligibility for child care. That will allow

         16  ACD-funded family day care programs and centers to

         17  arrange to have child care ready for the teen parent

         18  starting out just before she is due to return to

         19  school, instead of her getting on a waiting list the

         20  last minute just as school is about to open.

         21                 Currently, ACD does not accept the

         22  teenage parent's application for child care unless

         23  she can show that she has been accepted by a school.

         24                 ACD does not allow pregnant teenagers

         25  to apply for child care until after her baby is
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          2  born. By establishing their presumptive eligibility

          3  in advance, they can be placed on Family Day Care

          4  waiting lists for planned enrollment 12 weeks after

          5  their expected due date.

          6                 Assuring continuity of care. ACD

          7  should reestablish its priorities that it had for

          8  many years where parents who need to transfer from

          9  ACD child care service to another, giving those

         10  parents who are in the ACD system preference over

         11  new-comers in filling available openings.

         12                 Doing this will give LYFE parents a

         13  priority in finding a space for their child in some

         14  other ACD child care service when their child ages

         15  out of the LYFE program of they move to a school

         16  that has no LYFE center.

         17                 ACD funding for all of the ACD

         18  eligible children in the LYFE program, this is

         19  something that affects the Board of Education's

         20  ability to expand its programs because it is having

         21  to cover a great deal of cost, actually ACD child

         22  care costs.

         23                 ACD funding should be provided for

         24  all of those LYFE children that are now being cared

         25  for totally at the Board of Education expense, and
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          2  there is a substantial number of them over the

          3  years.

          4                 Children of teen parents in foster

          5  care. If a teen parent's foster mother is working,

          6  that foster parent is just as eligible to ACD child

          7  care as any other working parent that has a young

          8  child in her home for whom she is responsible.

          9                 Children of teen parents in a family

         10  that receives SSI, those teen parents are clearly

         11  income eligible for ACD funded child care to attend

         12  school, and ACD should be paying for their child

         13  care just as it does for teen parents in SSI

         14  families whose children are in community-based ACD

         15  centers and family day care programs.

         16                 Children who turn three during the

         17  school year, children who turn three remain in their

         18  LYFE Program until the end of the school year and

         19  both parent and child need this continuity of care,

         20  but ACD cuts off its payment the month the child

         21  turns three. ACD should be paying the LYFE program

         22  for those three-year-olds at the preschool payment

         23  rate, just as it does for other ACD funded centers

         24  when children, two-year-olds turn three.

         25                 Major issue about increasing the
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          2  supply: Pending long overdue expansion of ACD family

          3  day care contracts, ACD should authorize the family

          4  day care programs to enroll any teen parent that

          5  applies to them.

          6                 Starting immediately, ACD should

          7  provide the ACD family child care programs with

          8  targeted vouchers at their usual $135 or $110

          9  payment rate, so they can still enroll teen parents

         10  even when their budgeted capacity is full.

         11                 I attached a chart at the back

         12  without having had a chance to write anything about

         13  it. If you have the time, I would like very much to

         14  report on what has happened to the vanishing City

         15  Council expansion funds for ACD that could have and

         16  should have, starting July 1st, some 6.3 million, be

         17  started to be put into use by ACD for expanding

         18  contract services, and if you have time I would like

         19  to tell you what we heard about it on Friday at a

         20  meeting at which Maria Vando and Mr. Fazio, from

         21  ACS, explained their plans for using this money for

         22  vouchers, or using the new block grant money coming

         23  down for vouchers starting in two weeks.

         24                 The other thing I would like, if we

         25  had time to talk about, is a point alluded to in the
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          2  very thorough and excellent committee briefing on

          3  page seven about the support services in the ACD

          4  Family Day Care programs, and my colleague, Kathy

          5  Faust, who directs the program at Hartley House and

          6  Joan Davis could tell your Committee members about

          7  the support services. They vary tremendously because

          8  the LYFE program is designed to have the full range

          9  of services that support.

         10                 MS. DAVIS: There were some questions

         11  I believe that you had about where the LYFE Program

         12  is at this very moment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How many are

         14  enrolled in the LYFE Program?

         15                 MS. DAVIS: Currently right now there

         16  are 46 LYFE centers, 44 of them have nurseries, two

         17  are social work referral sites.

         18                 In the 44 sites we have a capacity

         19  for about 700 children. This is the beginning of the

         20  semester, so we are still enrolling, although many

         21  of our sites, particularly in the Bronx, in East New

         22  York, in Brooklyn, and in some of the Manhattan

         23  sites, our sites are full at this very moment.

         24  Although in some areas, Queens sites are also full,

         25  except for Beach Channel, which has space.
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          2                 So, it is really kind of geographic,

          3  it depends on where the school is as to whether or

          4  not there is space at this moment, however, we are

          5  rapidly filling up.

          6                 Someone also asked the question

          7  before about Medicaid, children coming in with

          8  Medicaid.

          9                 LYFE also has a full range of social

         10  services. Every site has a social worker, either

         11  full or part-time. So, the minute a mother comes to

         12  the LYFE program, that is one of the first things

         13  that the social worker does, is assure that this

         14  mother is getting all of the assistance that she is

         15  entitled to. So, if a girl comes in without Medicaid

         16  and should have it, she will immediately be helped

         17  to get Medicaid by the social worker.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, is there

         19  such a thing as a waiting list to get into a LYFE

         20  center?

         21                 MS. DAVIS: Yes. There are many

         22  individual -- the waiting lists are individual.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Individual

         24  centers?

         25                 MS. DAVIS: Yes.
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          2                 So, for example, high school

          3  redirection in East New York, Brooklyn, on the first

          4  day of school had 40 children enrolled full to the

          5  top. It has a waiting list right now of another 40

          6  children, so it depends. And in the Bronx sites we

          7  have waiting lists. So it varies from site to site.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do you have a

          9  total of people on the waiting lists? I mean, if you

         10  have got 44 centers that have nurseries --

         11                 MS. DAVIS: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: How many of

         13  them are filled to capacity?

         14                 MS. DAVIS: It is very geographic.

         15  Probably about half of them are full right now, and

         16  more will be filled in the next couple of weeks as

         17  students are being moved from place to place.

         18  Admissions is still looking for spaces for

         19  particular teen parents. Because teen parents come

         20  in always having problems. That is the nature of the

         21  child who has been out of school because she was

         22  pregnant.

         23                 So, they come in either with

         24  educational deficits, certainly credit deficits and

         25  admissions is calling constantly saying, now, I have
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          2  this 17 year old with two credits, what do I do with

          3  her? And so we are jocking for position for these

          4  students.

          5                 The evening schools with Ann

          6  mentioned, this is a big hole in the safety net, if

          7  there is a safety net. Because the evening schools,

          8  what they call the young adult borough academies

          9  which were set up particularly for students who were

         10  taking too long to finish high school, were all put

         11  in schools that do not have LYFE sites. It would

         12  have been more sensible to put them in a school

         13  where there is a LYFE site operating during the day

         14  and we could simply have a nightshift, which is what

         15  we do, by the way, at the door. We have a double

         16  shift of child care.

         17                 So, that would make --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Where would you

         19  get the money to have a double shift?

         20                 MS. DAVIS: LYFE is reimbursed through

         21  the Agency for Child Development. So, if the

         22  agreement were -- a lot of the things that Sandy

         23  mentioned. For example, if we were getting

         24  reimbursed, if any of these students went out into

         25  the community, they would be eligible for ACD funded
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          2  day care, if the slots were available. They are not.

          3                 If our slots were available, we would

          4  be able to be reimbursed by ACD for that child care.

          5  The Board of Ed, however, would still have to pick

          6  up a large amount of the money, because we do not

          7  get reimbursed for all of these other categories

          8  that Sandy mentioned.

          9                 MS. SOCOLAR: Could I ask Joan to give

         10  you an estimate of how many children in these three

         11  categories that ACD failed to pay for?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         13                 MS. DAVIS: Last year we had a total

         14  of about 650, 660 students, and about over a hundred

         15  of them, maybe about 120 of them were paid for

         16  totally by the Board of Ed, because they didn't fit

         17  into the reimbursement categories.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And then what

         19  happens when a child turns three?

         20                 MS. DAVIS: When a child turns three

         21  we do not throw the child back, but ACD stops paying

         22  us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: What is the

         24  parent supposed to do then?

         25                 MS. DAVIS: The idea is to transfer
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          2  the child into a regular ACD center.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Do they do

          4  that?

          5                 MS. DAVIS: They do. What happens is,

          6  if a mother is going to graduate in June and the

          7  baby turns three in February or March, we have to

          8  begin the transfer process, but we are not going to

          9  disrupt that mother's last few months of school by

         10  saying, okay, now you have to transfer your child,

         11  and then you have to stop at this day care center

         12  and then you have to come to school, so we usually

         13  hold them until the end of the year and then

         14  transfer them to another ACD site.

         15                 MS. SOCOLAR: But the problem is that

         16  ACD stops paying and so the Board of Education has

         17  to pick up and foot the bill and if they were in a

         18  community ACD center and they moved from a

         19  two-year-old to a three-year-old status, the center

         20  would still be paid.

         21                 MS. DAVIS: Also, the foster care

         22  issue is getting larger and larger. Particularly in

         23  Queens we tend to have quite a number of young women

         24  who are in foster care with their babies. The mother

         25  is in foster care, the baby technically is not, the
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          2  baby is in care of the mother. But because we do not

          3  get reimbursed for babies in foster care, the Board

          4  of Ed picks up the tab on those babies also.

          5                 MS. SOCOLAR: I think from a legal

          6  standpoint, I think it is quite clear that a foster

          7  mother who is working and foster care agencies are

          8  entitled and authorized to certify foster care

          9  mothers who work, that if she is a working person

         10  and has children in her home for whom she is

         11  responsible, that is quoted from ACD, or from the

         12  state regs, then she is entitled to child care as

         13  long as she is income eligible.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: As long as the

         15  Board of Education picks it up, what is the

         16  difference in the bottom line?

         17                 MS. DAVIS: The bottom line is that

         18  the Board of Education complains mightily and says

         19  we cannot afford any more LYFE sites because we are

         20  entitled to reimbursement --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I see. And so

         22  we have no new LYFE Centers because they consider it

         23  a drain.

         24                 MS. DAVIS: Actually, they have been

         25  fairly good about it. We had three sites this year
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          2  that have opened, but it is still not fair to them

          3  because the fund, because these young women are

          4  entitled to this, and if they were in a community

          5  day care center, the center would be reimbursed.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So it

          7  re-encourages the willing partner.

          8                 MS. DAVIS: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: -- In a

         10  progressive policy.

         11                 All right, thank you.

         12                 MS. SOCOLAR: The payment rate that

         13  ACD owes the Board of Education for these children

         14  is currently 162.50 a week, which is nothing to

         15  sneeze at, times 100 children, and that actually is

         16  much less than the child care cost that ACD is now

         17  going to have to renegotiate and take on because the

         18  state regulations require that one public agency

         19  like ACD buying child care from another public

         20  agency is obligated to pay them reasonable costs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Are there any

         22  LYFE centers that are not open or available at the

         23  present moment?

         24                 MS. DAVIS: No, at the moment they are

         25  open.
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          2                 MS. SOCOLAR: The Agency for Child

          3  Development pays that out of child care block grant

          4  funds to the Board of Education, right. It is a

          5  nominal part of what ACD agreed four years ago where

          6  the child care costs of the total LYFE program and

          7  Board of Ed covers alarmist amounts of other costs.

          8                 MS. DAVIS: They actually pay $215 --

          9                 MS. SOCOLAR: I am sorry, I am totally

         10  wrong, it is $215.

         11                 MS. DAVIS: ACD pays $215 per week per

         12  child. If the child is there.

         13                 Actually, the better way to look at

         14  it is that ACD pays $43 a day because if the child

         15  is not there on Tuesday, we do not get paid for

         16  Tuesday.

         17                 MS. SOCOLAR: I am glad you caught

         18  that, it is a lot of money not to be paid for 100

         19  children.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Ann, do you

         21  know if there is an estimate of the number of

         22  students who are parents attending school? Who are

         23  attending high school, how many students there are?

         24                 MS. COOK: I have those figures for

         25  you, I can get those figures for you.
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          2                 MS. DAVIS: We know that there are

          3  roughly 700 parents in the LYFE program, there are

          4  about 1,000 parents, pregnant parenting teens in the

          5  schools for pregnant teens. And then it is a

          6  guesstimate as to how many others there are who are

          7  not using the services that the Board of Ed

          8  provides.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So, I just want

         10  to go back to Anne's testimony for a moment.

         11                 What you are saying is that the

         12  schools are encouraging poor performing students

         13  really to leave because it hurts their school

         14  performance chart?

         15                 MS. SOCOLAR: This is going to, I

         16  think is going to accelerate. I think we are just

         17  seeing the tip of the iceberg right now.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So we have to

         19  try to invent an incentive for them to keep, and how

         20  do we do that?

         21                 MS. SOCOLAR: Well, I think the place

         22  where this has to happen is at the state level,

         23  because the state is setting educational policy,

         24  which is determining how schools appear, how schools

         25  are accredited and so on. I mean, what SURR means is
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          2  schools under registration review. In other words,

          3  their registration is in question. And that is when

          4  you see the Chancellor has the Chancellor schools,

          5  those are the schools that the State has designated

          6  as being schools under registration review.

          7                 Now, there is some question about how

          8  do schools get out from that category. Of course

          9  some people believe that the way they get out from

         10  that category is to change the student body.

         11                 At the present time, the way the

         12  state is is looking at schools, it has to do with

         13  numbers and it is going to have to do with how well

         14  these kids do on these exams, which I don't think

         15  that very many kids are going to pass.

         16                 You only have one in ten kids now who

         17  are getting a Regents diploma in the City, only one

         18  out of ten. So, you are going to have, I think, the

         19  estimates that the Community Service Society made,

         20  was in the thousands, hundreds of thousands of kids

         21  who were not going to get high school diplomas, if

         22  this whole thing plays out and if there is no safety

         23  net. And at the moment there is no safety net.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Council Member

         25  Marshall.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Now, we know

          3  that the number of the young women who are receiving

          4  social service benefits were in college. I am chair

          5  of the Higher Education Committee, that number has

          6  now been dropped by 14,000. But those who are

          7  remaining, do they get child care, if they are

          8  parents.

          9                 MS. DAVIS: Well, if they are parents,

         10  they do not get child care from the Board of

         11  Education, from the LYFE Program, because that is

         12  for high school students only.

         13                 If they are attending a two-year

         14  college program, they are eligible for ACD funded

         15  child care. If they are in a four-year college, they

         16  are not eligible, they can only get it through the

         17  college they attend. But they are not eligible for

         18  regular ACD funded care.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, I know.

         20  I am aware of that. That does not have to be, and I

         21  would suggest that you lobby hard with the State

         22  Legislature because I was chair of the State and

         23  Federal Legislation Committee, and around this

         24  country, when they came up with the new family

         25  support act, many states allowed young women, or
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          2  people who are parents, to go on and get even a

          3  four-year degree. These are the people at the bottom

          4  of the ladder and the college degree will definitely

          5  remove them forever, and that is a lacking in New

          6  York State. It is a big lacking.

          7                 MS. SOCOLAR: And what it does with

          8  our young people, when they graduate from high

          9  school, is it really pushes them toward the

         10  community colleges, even if they have the

         11  opportunity to attend a four-year college, because

         12  they need the child care.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And then

         14  they must be registered in some sort of a vocational

         15  course that will give them a skill or a trade. Some

         16  of it has to do with federal law, but basically New

         17  York State can change that, because other states

         18  have changed it from the beginning.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         20                 Diana Walker.

         21                 MS. WALKER: My name is Diana Walker,

         22  and I run the Manhattan Playhouse and we are in a

         23  unique position of being housed in an inner-city

         24  high school where in exchange for our housing, we

         25  give the Board of Education an Arts and Education
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          2  Program.

          3                 Recently we were asked to help with

          4  teen parenting and teen pregnancy issues, and we

          5  came up with a project that we call When One Plus

          6  One Equals Three: Teens Talk Parenting. And the

          7  mission of the project, and it has been very

          8  successful, I am happy to say, so far, is to have

          9  older children, high school children, go to middle

         10  schools and present their perspective in a 20-minute

         11  program to the younger children, see how the younger

         12  children react and my hope is that over the next

         13  five or so years we will track the younger

         14  children's reaction to see if anything that we have

         15  done has been effective.

         16                 The real reason I am here today,

         17  thanks to Ms. Quinn's office, who is the mentor of

         18  this project in a sense because it is in her

         19  district, is that I have --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I deserve no

         21  such credit, it is completely Diana --

         22                 MS. WALKER: It is in your district,

         23  Chris.

         24                 But what we have learned by osmosis,

         25  and because we are not teachers, we have become
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          2  teenage advocates for these many, many, many -- and

          3  we work at the High School of Graphic Communication

          4  Arts and Park West High School, a population of

          5  about 4,000 inner-City high school kids, and the

          6  program is working so well that the buzz in the

          7  school is that it is a good thing to participate in

          8  and the other children have been incredibly generous

          9  and honest, as people have reported today, about

         10  their feelings on all the issues about teen

         11  parenting. What I beg and urge and hope is that in

         12  time every single, as other people have said, high

         13  school insists on having teen parenting classes. It

         14  supplements and compliments all of the standards, in

         15  fact, we are trying to create a show called School

         16  The Musical, which is basically, it takes point by

         17  point, except we can't have the kids read 25 books

         18  out load. It will show the public and the audiences

         19  what they are being asked to achieve.

         20                 But they need, we are working in

         21  these schools and we have a very high attendance

         22  rate, but we do it as an extra curriculur, this is

         23  not part of the school day because the school

         24  principals love us being there because they like the

         25  fact the kids show up, and the kids can show up to
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          2  stay for us, so that means they are in school and

          3  that is good, that means the schools get more money

          4  because the reimbursement rate helps, et cetera, et

          5  cetera, but they need to have in-school teen

          6  parenting classes, mandatory, paid for by the state.

          7  I mean, every day I am there, and we have become

          8  sort of the unexpert/experts, I mean it has been

          9  incredibly valuable for me today to sit here and

         10  learn so much that an awful lot of people don't

         11  know. So now I will take that back to our classes

         12  with these children next week, this week in fact,

         13  and have more information for them. So, I will just

         14  leave you with saying, please, please, please do

         15  what you can to insist that as part of the school

         16  day these children know that they are going to learn

         17  about, and it should start, of course, as someone

         18  said, in junior high school.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you for

         21  coming. It is wonderful always to hear from people

         22  like you and we will hopefully continue to hear

         23  about your programs, and I hope that you will

         24  continue to talk to the people that you heard

         25  testify, and you will be able to help them and they
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          2  will help you.

          3                 MS. WALKER: Absolutely. Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Diana, we will

          5  gather the testimony here, so if there are any

          6  copies you didn't get, just let my office or Ronnie

          7  Eldridge's office know and we will get it to you.

          8                 MS. WALKER: Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Chances are

         10  this will be on Crosswalks. I live on the west side

         11  so I know it is channel 74.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The same in

         13  Queens.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: The same in

         15  Queens. So, you just can keep looking and you will

         16  find the whole hearing. Sometimes it is the best

         17  content on television.

         18                 MS. WALKER: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Madam Chair,

         20  can I just ask a question?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Do you have

         23  any male students involved?

         24                 MS. WALKER: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And how does
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          2  that work out?

          3                 MS. WALKER: It is wonderful. And

          4  while we have gotten them -- I had a session with a

          5  young man yesterday who is 18 years old and very

          6  much wants to be a father, and his pals were saying

          7  you are nuts. You know, my feeling, and I am sure

          8  all of your feelings, all children want to feel safe

          9  and one of the reasons that many of these kids, it

         10  is my totally unprofessional belief, want to try

         11  maybe their hand at being parents themselves, they

         12  want to correct the mistakes they felt, you know,

         13  maybe we can do it better.

         14                 But the boys are interested in our

         15  projects because it is performance, and they are the

         16  stars. The neat thing about this program I think is

         17  that they are the experts. I mean, Ethan Knoll, who

         18  is our Arts and Education Director, I mean we kind

         19  of sit there and try and make them look good, that

         20  is what it is all about, so they feel good about it.

         21  And what is absolutely astonishing, I find, is when

         22  the older kids interact with the younger kids and it

         23  becomes this sort of older brother, older sister,

         24  talking to the younger brother and younger sister.

         25  The older kids become terribly protective.
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          2                 One of the things that we are facing

          3  is there is a certain squeamishness of the parents

          4  and the schools, the junior high schools, they don't

          5  like their kids hearing about sex, you know, you

          6  can't legislate that, we just have to do it

          7  diplomatically and carefully. And you know, I am

          8  hoping this will grow. This is a totally

          9  non-judgmental program, we are not about, you know,

         10  don't have sex, don't have babies, it is about be

         11  honest and inform us. I mean, it has been one of the

         12  most emotionally both distressing and satisfying

         13  thing that I have ever done.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I know that

         15  you are not there to correct, but you are correcting

         16  problems, and I know what you can do with drama, I

         17  have seen it. Is there a sense of a curriculum that

         18  strengthens them and gives them a sense of

         19  responsibility in being parents? Is that a

         20  by-product of your work with them?

         21                 MS. WALKER: Well, it is a by-product

         22  because we are learning through doing, but as I hear

         23  from other people who are experts who have had years

         24  and years of experience with what works, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 All right, Sandy, do you and Kathy

          5  Faust want to come up and give us this depressing

          6  news?

          7                 MS. SOCOLAR: I just want to mention

          8  one thing about the points that we made before on

          9  priority status for teen parents. Kathy Faust

         10  reminds me that ACD now places teen parents who are

         11  in self-supporting families, who are not on welfare,

         12  they are now down in priority code five --

         13                 MS. FAUST: Priority code six, if they

         14  are in school.

         15                 MS. SOCOLAR: Six. Instead of being

         16  where they used to be in priority code three. And

         17  they are being instructed, the programs have been

         18  instructed that they cannot enroll children whose

         19  priority code is below priority code four. It is

         20  protective, preventive welfare, working parents --

         21                 MS. FAUST: Actually working parents

         22  is five.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Protective,

         24  preventive?

         25                 MS. FAUST: Protective, preventive. A
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          2  teen parent who is in a self-supporting household,

          3  and is in school, is a priority code six.

          4                 We are told that we cannot accept

          5  them, unless we have no children ahead of them on

          6  the waiting list, which of course we always do.

          7                 I currently have a family, two

          8  children on my waiting list, two infants. It is the

          9  teen parent's child and her mother's child. These

         10  infants are four and five months old respectively.

         11  The parent who is working and supporting her

         12  children, and her teen child, and her grandchild, is

         13  eligible, is a priority five because she is working.

         14  But her teenage 16 year old daughter who is

         15  attending high school I cannot accept, unless I can

         16  get special approval because I have other people on

         17  the waiting list. So she is a lower priority. And I

         18  am extremely concerned about this.

         19                 And Sandy wanted me to respond to the

         20  report that talks about services to teen parents in

         21  City funded day care programs.

         22                 We are a funded day care program, we

         23  don't have specific support services set up for our

         24  teen parents, but we have had many teen parents in

         25  our program.
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          2                 First of all, when we do intake with

          3  them, they are introduced to all of our staff and

          4  told that we are here for them. Then they go out to

          5  their family day care homes, they usually form a

          6  bond with that provider parent who alerts us, if the

          7  teen parent doesn't themselves, that there is a

          8  crisis or a situation that needs to be attended to.

          9                 Hartley House has two full-time

         10  social workers on staff. If we are alerted to -- as

         11  we are with any of our parents, the situation or

         12  crisis arises, we are there on top of it making sure

         13  that those parents, if they can't get the services

         14  directly from us, are directed to where they can get

         15  those services, and just that bond that they form

         16  with that provider mother gives them a kind of

         17  support and a person to turn to, that they wouldn't

         18  have otherwise.

         19                 So, in a sense we are not being given

         20  -- funds are not being directed specifically as to

         21  support service to them, those services are

         22  available to them.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: That is why we

         24  have been trying to pass some legislation for family

         25  child care that (a) would encourage family day care
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          2  providers to affiliate with a network or a larger

          3  provider, and also that would provide for some

          4  inspection so that we know what is happening.

          5                 Unfortunately, we have been unable to

          6  pass that bill and I don't know when that is going

          7  to happen.

          8                 Tell me now about this money from the

          9  state, how much money is it? It's a lot of money.

         10                 MS. SOCOLAR: The prediction is that

         11  this additional TANF money that was added to the

         12  child care block grant, it isn't state money, it is

         13  federal money --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right.

         15                 MS. SOCOLAR: That New York City will

         16  probably get 66 or 67 million, and on the strength

         17  of that, they announced on Friday at a big meeting

         18  on the expansion of services that HRA and ACD,

         19  starting in two weeks, will each of them start

         20  issuing 500 vouchers, and when we brought up the

         21  question on the floor as to why the Family Day Care

         22  Programs shouldn't be given an immediate go ahead to

         23  expand their contract capacity by ten percent, which

         24  is something that ACD has been speaking about doing

         25  for two years, what they said was that they were

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            124

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  still trying to figure out some problems about how

          3  to do it. This is something that has been on their

          4  agenda to do for well over a year.

          5                 What concerns me in addition to that

          6  is that the City Council has assumed that it has

          7  added $4.8 million, the missing $4.8 million that

          8  was given back in the budget mod last November, so

          9  that nominally there was 4.8 million more in ACD's

         10  budget, June 1st, July 1st -- June 1st, to start

         11  expanding.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: July 1st

         13  when our new budget begins.

         14                 MS. SOCOLAR:-- And with your efforts

         15  another 1.5 million was added, and what this chart

         16  shows you is that even though we would assume that

         17  we would have $6.3 million more than we did last

         18  year, at the beginning of this fiscal year, in fact

         19  we have only 1.1 million more than we had last year.

         20  And on top of that, out of that $365.8 million, over

         21  5 million of it is earmarked for paying union pay

         22  increases, which means that there is literally a

         23  hole, as far as covering the subsidized capacity.

         24  And this I think is something really serious, the

         25  way they did it was a very neat budget plot, which
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          2  is simply to decide that they will not spend as much

          3  money of state money on welfare parents using ACD

          4  child care. They are the only ones on which there is

          5  any state money spent. And that they would

          6  arbitrarily elect to reduce that amount of money

          7  from 28.5 million down to 5.4 million, meaning that

          8  instead of serving 9,000 children, which ACD

          9  programs did last year, of parents in workfare and

         10  WEP, welfare parents, 9,000 of them were in ACD

         11  child care, in good, safe, monitored child care,

         12  that this year their plan, and the money they have

         13  set aside to do it, was only enough to have 3,000

         14  children in ACD child care. And they do a

         15  double-whammy here --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: So the rest of

         17  it will continue to go through HRA, OES?

         18                 MS. SOCOLAR: They are increasing

         19  HRA's funding by $5 million --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: And those

         21  vouchers for just informal care?

         22                 MS. SOCOLAR: And that is to give them

         23  enough to pay --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: A thousand

         25  vouchers that they talked about issuing out of the
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          2  TANF money, is that going to go to informal care?

          3                 MS. SOCOLAR: It can.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: I think that we

          5  should leave the rest of this discussion for an

          6  informal briefing, okay?

          7                 MS. SOCOLAR: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          9                 MS. SOCOLAR: I think it is something

         10  that needs to be dealt with for the November mod.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Right. Thank

         12  you. And thank you very much, Kathy.

         13                 Thank you. Is there anybody else who

         14  wants to testify? Thank you. This meeting is

         15  adjourned. And I think it has been very interesting.

         16  I regret, again, that the Administration did not

         17  send anybody to testify.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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